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Transpacific’s business modet is based on

the provision of tallored services o meet the
needs of Bs custormer grouos and o provide 2
cornprehensive range of integrated total waste
management and facility rmanagement services.
Transpacific curvently has business operations
throughout Australia and New Zealand, including
3 rmjor procsssing facilites,

integrated Total Waste Management Solutions.
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Corporate
Governance
Statement

Transpacific Indusiries Group Lid {the Company)
ardd the Board are highly committed o aporopriate
bevels of corporate governances. An extensive

el of the Company's corporate governsncs
framweork was corapeted during 2008 i light

of best practice recommendastions release
by the Australian Stock Exchange Corporate
Covernanes Gouncll (BSHCGE,




in March 2008, the Board
formally adopted a range of policies,
mmany of which are available on our
website at: www.iranspacific.com.au.
These policies have been reviswed
during financial year 2008 and
updaied as necessary. The
Compary's corporate governance
structure has been dasigned 1o
optirmise corporate performance

and accountability as appropriate

for its particular circurnstances.

The Company complies with the
ASXCGS “Principles of Good
Corporate Governance and Best
Practice Recommendations” with
orly twor exceptions, and the
explanation for these departures

is set out in this statement.

The refationship batween the Board
and senior manageament is critical to
the Company’s long-term success.
The Directors are responsibie to the
shareholders for the performance of
the Company in both the short and
the longer term and seek o balance
sometirmes competing objectives in
the best interasts of the Company as
a whole. Their focus is o enhance
the interests of shareholders and
other key stakeholders and to ensure
the Company is properly managed.

Day 1o day managament of

the Compary’s affairs and the
implementation of the carporate
sirategy and policy iniliatives are
formally delegated by the Board
to the Executive Chairman, the
Chief Executive Officer and senior
executives as set out in the Board
Charter. Thess delegations are
reviewed on an annual basis.

A description of the Company's

main corporate governance practices
is get out below, All these practices,
uniess othervise stated, wereg in
place for the full financial year.

The Board of Direclors

The Board operates in accordance
with the broad principles set outin

its Charter which can be viewed on
the corporate governanee information
section of the Company website.

The charter details the Board's
camposition and responsibilitiss.

Board Composition

The Company's Constitution calks
for at isast three but not more than
ten Directors. The Board is currently
comprised of threg exacutive

Transpacific
Annual Report
2006

Direclors and three non-executive
Diractors. ASXCGC Best Practice
Recormmendation 2.1 states the
majority of the Board should be
independent Directors. The current
Board beligves six Directars is an
optimal number of direciors fora
company the size and growth profile
of the Company. it believes the skills
and industry knowlsdge of all three
exgcutive Directors are required to
lead the Company forward.

Board members

Details of the members of the

Board, their exparience, axpertiss,
qualfications, term of office and
independeance are set out earlier in
the annual report. The Board has a
broad range of relevant operational,
regulatory, risk management, financial
and other skills and expertise to mest
its objectives and affectively govern
the Company.

Chairman

The Chairman is responsibie

for leading the Board, ensuring
Directors are properly brisfed in

all matters relevant to their role

and responsibilities, faciitating
Board discussions and managing
ihe Board's relationship with the
Company's senior executives.
ASXCGC Bast Practics
Recormmendation 2.2 states the
Chairman should be an independent
Diractor. The current Board believes
ihe Compary’s founder and major
shareholder, Terry Peabody, has

the vision, skills and desp industry
knowlaedgs to lead the Comparny,
clearly communicate the Comparny’s
objectives and strategy, and o sét
market expectations.

Nor-executive

Directors’ independerce

The Board has reviewesd the
independence of the non-executive
Dirsclors and considers sachto be
rdependent and free of any business
or other ralationship that could,

or could reasonably be perceived

o, materially interfere with thair
independent judgarnent and ability to
act in the best interasts of the Company.

The Board has adopled specific
principles in refation to the
nor-executive Directors’
independeance. These state that to
be desmed indapendent, a Director
must be a non-executive and:

Page 16&17

« ot De a substantial shareholder
of the Company or an officer of, or
oiherwise associated dirsctly with,
& substandial shareholder of the
Company {a substantial shareholder
is one who owns 5% or more of
the Carmpany);

« within the last three years, nol have
beean employed in an executive
capacity by the Company or any
other Group member, or besn a
Dirsctor after ceasing to hold any
such amployrment;

« within the last three years not
have been a principal of & material
professional adviser or a raterial
consultant to the Company or
any other Group member, or an
ermployss materially associated with
the service providad,

« ot be & material supplier or
customer of the Cormparny or any
other Group mamber, or an officer
of or otherwise associgled directly
or indirectly with a materiat supplier
or customer;

« must have no material contractual
refationship with the Comparny or
a controlied entity other thanas a
Dirsctor of the Company,

« ot hiave been on the Board
for a pariod which could, or
could reasonably be perceived
to, materially interfere with the
Birector’s abifity to act in the
best interesis of the Company;

«be fres from any interest and any
business or gther refationship
which could, or could reasonably
be pereeived to, materially inferfere
with the Director’s ability to act in
the best interests of the Company.

Matleriality for these purposes is
determingd on both quantitative
and gualitative bases. An amourt
of over 5% of annual turnover of
the Company or Group or 5% of
the individuat Direclors’ net worth
is considerad material for these
purposes. In addition, a transaction
of any amourd or & relationship is
deemed material if knowledge of
it rmay impact the sharsholders’
undearstanding of the Dirsctor's
parformanca.
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Term of Office
The Compary’s Constitution requires
ong third of the Directors, other than
the Executive Chairmarn {as the
nominated managing dirsctor), to
retire from office at sach Annual
General Maeting. Directors, other
than the Executive Chairman, who
hold office for a period of three years
or a period expiring at the third
Arnual General Maeting following
their appointment {whichever is the
longen must also retire. Where eligible,
a Director may stand for re-slection.

Meetings of the Board

and Commitmenit of
Non-Executive Directors

The Board held regular Board
meetings during the year. In addition
to the regular scheduled mestings,
the Board rmsels whenever nacessary
to deal with specific matters

naeding attertion.

The number of mestings of the
Compary’s Board of Directors and of
each Board commitiee held during
the year ended 30 June 2006, and
the number of mestings aitended by
gach Diractor is disclosed on page 24.

The commitments of non-executive
Directors are considerad by the
nomination and remuneration
committee prior to the dirsctors’
appointment to the Board of the
Compary and are reviewed sach year
as part of the annual performance
assessment.

Prioy 1o appomtmeant or baing
subrnitted for re-glection, each
non-executive Director is required
to speciically acknowtedge that
they have and will continue 1o have
the time avallable to discharge their
responsibifities to the Company.

Nomination and Appointment
of New Directors

When a new Direclor is o be
appointed, the nomination and
remuneration commities reviews
the range of skills, experience and
axpertise o the Board, identifiss its
needs and prepares a short list of
candidates with appropriate skills
and axperience. Wheres necessary,
advice is sought from independent
consuliants.

The full Board then appoints the

most suitable candidate who must
stand for election at the next Annual
General Mesting of the Company. The
committeg’s nomination of existing
Dirsctars for reappointment is not
autormatic and is condingent on their
past perfarmance, cortribution to the
Company and the current and future
needs of the Board and Compary.

Datails of the selection and
appointment processes are available
ort the Comparny website.

Notices of Meeting for the
Election of Directors Comply
with the ASXCGC’s Best
Practice Recommendations
New Directors are provided with

a lgtter of appointment setting out
the Company's expectations, their
responsibiities and rights and the
terms and conditions of their position,
Al new Dirgctors participate in an
ncuction program which covers
the operation of the Board and

its committees and financial,
strategic, operational and risk
management issues.

Independent Professional Advice
Directors and Board comimittess
have the right, in conngction with their
duties and responsibilities, to seak
inclependent professional acvice at
the Company's expense. Prior written
approval of the Chairman is required,
but this will not be unreasonably
withiheld.

Performance Assessment

The nomination and remuneration
committes is responsible for
evaluating the performance of

the Board and key executives.

The Execuiive Chairman undertakes
an anrnual assessment of the
performance of individual directors
and meets privataly with each
Director o discuss this assassment.

Board Committees

There are currently twe Board
committess which have been
establishad to assist in the execution
of the Board's duties and 1o allow
detaited consideration of compiex
issues. Current committees are

the normination and remunearation
committes and the audit and risk
managament and compliancs
committes, Pravious commitiees
during the year included the
Transpacific Step-up Preference
Sacurities due diligence committee.

Other committess of the Board
may be established from time o
time to consider matters of special
rnportance or to exersise the
delegated authority of the Board.

Fach committee has its own

written charter setling out its role
and responsibiliies, composition,
structure, membership requirernents
and the manner inwhich the
committes is to operate. All of

these charlers are reviewed on an
annual basis and are available on
the Company website. Al matters
determined by committess are
subimitied to the full Board as
recommendations for Board decision.
Each committee is composed of

the people the Board considers
hest suited to fulfil the rote of sach
cammittes,

Minutes of commities meetings are
tabled at the immediately subsaguent
Board meeting. Additional
requirernerts for specific reporting

by the committees to the Board

are addressed in the charter of the
individual committees.

MNomination and

Remurneration Commitiee

The nomination and remunaration
cormmittes consists of the following
Diractors:

G B Mulligan {Chairman)
{Non-Executive Diractor)

8 R Brown (Non-Executive Director)
T £ Peabody

H L Wilson

The main responsibifiies of the
committee are to:

* review, assess and make
recommendations to the Board
on the necessary and desirable
cormpetancies of the Directors and
retevart Board commitiess,

« svaluate the Board's performance,

* oversee the salection and
appointrment practices for Directors
and senior executives,

+ assist the Board in refation to
the remuneration policy for the
Company, the application of
the policy to executives and the
svaluation of the perfarmance
of the Chief Executive Officer.
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Audit and Risk Management
and Compliance Committee
The audit and risk management and
carmpliance committee consists of the
following non-exacutive Directors:

8 R Brown {Chairman)
G B Mudfigan
8 S Alian

Details of these Directors’
gualifications and attendance at
audit and risk management and
corrpliance committeg mestings are
sel out sartier and in the Directorg’
report on page 24.

The audit and risk manageament

and compliance commities has
appropriate financial expertise and all
members are financially fiterate and
have an appropriate understanding of
the industries in which the Cormpany
operates.

The main responsibilities of the
committes are to:

* review, assess and approve
the annual report, the half-year
financial repori and other financial
information publishad by the
Company or released to the market;

» assist the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the organisation’s
intarnal control erwironment,
COVELng:

—the sffectiveness and sfficiency
of operations;

—the reliability of financial reporting;

—compliance with applicable
laws and regulations;

+ determine the scope of the
internal audit function {if any;

« overses the sffective operation of
the risk management framewaork;

« recommend 1o the Board the
appointment, reappomntment
or replacerment of the external
audiior, and review the terms of is
engagermert, the scope and quality
of the audit and assess the auditor
performance,

« consider the independencs and
compstence of the external auditor
oFt an ongoing basis;

« review and approve the level of
non-audit sarvices provided by the
external auditor and ensurg it doss
not adversely mpact on auditor
indepandencs;

«report to the Board on matiers
refevant fo the commilise’s role
and responsibilities.

in fulfilling its responsibilitiss,
the audit and risk management
and compliance cormmities:

* receives regular reports from
management and the external
audior,

+ meets with the externa auditor at
least twice a year or more frequently
if necessary and meets separately
with the external auditor at least
twice a year without the presence
of manageament;

« reviews the processes the bxecutive
Chairrman, CEQ and CFO have in
place 1o support its certifications
to the board;

* reviews any significant
disagreamenis between the auditor
and management, irrespective of
whether they have been resobved;

« provides the external auditor with a
clear ling of direct communication
at any time to the Chairman of
the audit and risk rmanagement
cormmittes.

The audit and risk managsment and
compliance committes has authority,
within the scope of B3 responsibilities,
to seek any inforrmation it regquires
from any employes or external party.

Code of Conduct and

Securities Trading

The Company has developed a
Staternent of Vaiues and Corporate
Code of Conduct {the Code) which
have been fully endorsed by the
Board. The Code is regularly reviewesd
and updated as necessary to ensure
it reflects the highest standards of
behaviour and professionalisim and
the praclices necessary to maintain
corfidence in the Compary's integrity.

inn surmmary, the Code requires that
at all times Directors and Company
parsonnel be layal to the Company,
show the highest business integrity
in their dealings with others and
canduct the Company’s business

in accordance with the law and
principtes of good business practice.

The Code details the key principles of
the Company’s Trade Practices and
Fair Trading policies.,

Page 18819

Adiditionally the Code reinforces

the Company's securities trading
poiley which permits Directors and
ermployees to buy and sell Company
securities during the six week period
following the release of the half-
vearly and annual financial resulis to
the market and the six weaek period
following the Annual General Meeting.
Trading outside the permitted trading
windows is permitiad only with

the prior consent of the Exescutive
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer

or Comparny Secretary. Trading in
securities is prohibited at all mes

by anyona in possession of price
sensitive information.

The Code recuires employess who
are awares of unethical practices
within the Cormpany or breaches of
the company’s trading policy 1o report
these to the Company Secretary or
the audit and risk management and
cormpliance committee.

The Directors are satisfied that
the Company has complisd with
its policies on sthical standards,
including trading in securities.

A copy of the Code and the trading
policy are available on the Compary’s
weabsite.

Corporate Reporling

The Board receives regular reports
about the financial condition and
operational results of the Company.

The Cormpany’s financial report
preparation and approval process for
the 2006 financial year involved the
Executive Chairman, CEQ and CFO
miaking the following certifications o
the Board:

sthat the Company's financial
reports are compiste and present
a true and fair view, in all matarial
respects, of the financial condition
and operational resuits of the
Comparny and controlied entities
and are in accordance with relevant
accourting standards;

+that the ahove statement is
founded on & sound systemn of
risk managemert and intermal
cormpliance and control and which
irpiements the policies adopted by
the Board and that the Company's
risk management and internal
cormpliance and control is operating
efficiently and effsctivaly in alt
rmaterial respects.
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Audit Governance

and Independence

The Company's policy is o

appoint an externat auditor who
clearly demonstrates quality and
inclependeance. The performance

of the external auditor is reviewed
anrally. Bentleys MBI Brisbaneg
Partnership was appointed as the
external auditor in 2002, it is Company
policy to require the auditor to rotate
audit engagement partners at least
every five years,

Fees paid 1o the exiarnal auditor are
pravided in note 26 to the financial
staterments.

Bentleys MRl is required to

pravide an annual declaration of

its independence 1o the audit and
risk roanagement and compliance
committee and the Board. A copy of
this declaration s set out on page 33.

The external auditor is requested to
attend the Annual General Mesting
and be available 10 answer shareholder
guestions about the conduct of the
audit and the preparation and contert
of the audit report.

Continuous Disclosure and
Shareholder Communication
The Company has written policies
and procedures on information
disclosure that focus on continuous
disclosure of any information
concerning the Company that a
reasonabie person would expect to
have a material effect on the price
of the Company’s securities. These
policies and procedures also includs
the arrangements the Company has
in place to promote cormmunication
with shareholders and encourage
sffective participation at general
meetings. A surmmary of these
policies and procadurss is available
ort the Company’s website.

The Cormparny Secretary has been
nominated as the person responsibie
for commurications with the ASX.
This role includes responsibility

for ensuring compliance with the
cortinuous disclosurg requirements in
the ASX Listing Rutes and oversesing
and co-ordinating information
disclasure to the ASX.

Al inforrmation disclosed to the ASX
is posted o the company’s website
following cordirmation of the release
by the ASK to the sharemarket. When
analysts are briefed on aspeots of the
Compary's operations, the material
used in the presentation is

refeased to the ASX and posted on
the comparny’'s website. Procedurss
have also been established for
reviewing whether any price sensitive
information has been inadvertently
disclosed, and i 30, this information
is also immedialely released o

the markeat.

The Comparny aims o keep
sharehoiders informed of the
Company’s performance and major
developrments in an ongoing manner.
Annual and half vear reports are
chistributed to all shareholders unless
specifically requestaed otherwise,

in addition, the Company seeks

to provide opporiunities for
sharehoiders 1o participate through
elactronic means. Al Company
announcerments, media briefings,
details of Comparny meetings, press
refeases and financial reports are
available on the Company’s website.

Sharehoiders are encouraged to
attend Annual General Meetings
and to use this opportunity to
ask questions.

Hisk Assessment

and Management

The Board, through the audit and
risk management and compliance
committes, is responsible for ensuring
there are adequate policies in relation
to risk management, compliance and
internal control systems. In summary,
the Company policies are designed
to ensure strategic, operational, legal,
requlaiory and financial risks are
identified, assessed, effectively and
efficiently managed and mortitored
to enable achievermeant of the
Company’s business objectives.

Considerable importance is placed
ort mairdaining a strong control
srvironment. There is an organisation
structure with clearly drawn lines

of accouriabilty and delegation of
authority. Adherence 1o the Code

of Conduct (see page 18) is required
at aif fimes and the Board actively
promoles a culture of quality and
integrity.

The Compary risk managament
policy and the operation of the

risk rmanagement and compliance
procedures is managed by the
Comparty Risk Management Group
which consists of senior executives
chaired by the CEC and reporiing o
the audit and risk management and
compliance cormmittes,

Detailed control pracedures cover
management accourting, financial
reporting, project appraisal,
environment, health and safety, iT
security, compliance and other risk
management issues. Numerous risk
management controls are embedded
in the Group's management and
reporting systems, including:

« policies and procedures for the
managsment of financial sk and
treasury operations, including
hedging exposures to foreign
currencies and interest rates;

« annual budgeting and morthly
reporting systems for all divisions
which enable monitoring of progress
against perforrmance targets,
avatuation of trends and variances
to be acted upon;

« health and safsty programs
and targets;

« weekly cash flow analysis and
forecasts, including monitoring
capital expenditure, working capital
and management of assets and
iabilities;

+ due diligence procedures
for substantial acquisitions.

In addition, the Board requires that
each major proposal submitted to the
Hoard for decision be accomparied
by a comprehensive risk assessmernt
and, where required, management’s
proposed mitigation strategies.

Internal Financial Controls

in view of the divisional structure

of the Company with divisional
accounting functions, and
considering cost effectiveness,

the Company relies on its financial
management team to perform irernal
audit functions.

Occupational Health, Safety,
Environment and Training (OHSET)

The Compary recognises the

importance of OHSET issues and is
committed to the highest levels of
performance and revisw, The Cormpany:

ernonitors its compliance with
all relevant legislation,

e cordinually assesses and improves
the impact of its operations on the
erwironmeant;

sancourages employees to actively
participats in the management
of OHSET issuss.

information on compliance with
significant environmerital reguiations
i set out in the Directors’ Heport.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Transpacific Industries Group Lid ("the
Company”) and of the consolidated entity, being the Company and its controlled entities, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2006 and the auditor's report thereon.

Directors

The names of directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are as follows.
Directors were in office for this entire period uniess otherwise stated.

T E Peabody - Executive Chairman

H L Wilson - Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

J J Richards — Non-Executive Director and Deputy Chairman {resigned 23 August 2006)
G D Mudligan - Non-Executive Director

R J Ruston - Nen-Executive Director {resigned 25 January 2006)

B R Brown - Non-Executive Director {(appointed Deputy Chairman 23 August 2006)

G F Sparks - Executive Director (resigned 25 January 2006}

H W Grundell — Executive Director

B S Allan — Non-Executive Director {appointed 23 August 2006)

The office of company secretary is hetd by K L Smith, 8.Com (Hons}, CA.

Particulars of directors’ qualifications, experience and special responsibilities are detailed on pages 14 to 15 and
page 18 and 19 of the Annual Report.

Principal Activities

During the financial year the principal continuing activities of the consolidated entity consisted of:
« management of tiguid waste, including its collection, transportation, treatment and disposal;
« the collection, re-refining, processing and sale of hydrocarbon and cooking oils;

« industrial solutions including industriat cleaning, high pressure water blasting and manufacture and lease
out of parts washers; and

« commerciai vehicles and parts importing and sales.

No significant changes in the nature of the activities of the consolidated entity occurred during the year.

Dividends

Details of dividends in respect of the financial year are as follows:

2008 2005
$000 £900
Special fully franked dividend declared on 8 March 2005 to pre-iP0O sharehelders - 18,500
Interim dividend declared and paid during the year 2006 - 4.2 cents per share 8,515 -
TOTAL DIVIDENDS DECLARED FOR PAYMENT 8,518 18,500
After the balance sheet date the following dividend was proposed by the directors.
Final dividend of 5.1 cents per share 11,495 -

The finanicial effect of this dividend has not been brought to account in the financial statements for the year ended
30 June 20086 and will be recognised in subsecuent financial reports. The dividend reflects the number of shares
on issue post the 14 September 2008 placement, but does not take into account any options which may be
exercised prior to the record date.

All dividends paid and proposed are fully franked.
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Review of Operations, Financial Position, Business Strategies and Prospects

Net profit after income tax attributable to members of Transpacific Industries Group Lid for the year ended

30 June 2006 was approximately $47.5 million {2005: $28.5 million). This represents an improvement of 60%
over the financial year 2005 and an improvement of 28% over original IPQ prospectus forecasts for financial year
2006. The improvement has been foreshadowed and disclosed in a number of ASX market releases and more
recently in the Product Disclosure Statement for Transpacific Step-Up Preferenice Securities.

The Company made a number of acquisitions during the year of which the market is aware. Details of these
acqguisitions are set out in niote 24 1o the financial statements

The Company has a sound financial position at 30 June 2008 generating strong cash flows to fund its working
capital requirements and day to day cash flows. Further equity and debt has been raised subsequent to balance
date as detailed below. All debt covenants have been satisfied and the Company has in axcess of $300 million
available in unused debt facilities. For business strategies and prospects refer below.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

During the financial year there was nio significant change in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity other
than referred to in the financial statemenis or notes therete.

Events Subsequent to Reporting Date

Subsequent to the balance date, the Company and its consolidated entities have acquired a number of
businesses and on 3 July 2006 amalgamated with Waste Management NZ Lid.

The Company had debt facilities in place at 30 June 2008 to fund these post balance date acquisitions and the
amalgamation. Post-batance date, the Company amended its debt facilities and raisedfis raising equity as
follows:
On 31 August 2008, the Company and its 100% owned subsidiaries signed a new Syndicated Muiti-Cption
Facility with its bankers. This agreement increased the facilities available from $1 billion to $1.2 billion.
Additionally, the consolidated entity has raised additional equity to partially pay down debt used to fund the Waste
Management NZ Lid amalgamation referred to above and to provide extra funding for future growth. The equity
raisings werefare as follows:

« on 23 August 2008, $258 miflion was raised through Transpacific Step-up Preference Secursities;

« on 14 September 2008 the Company raised $150 millicn through the placement of 21,428,571 milfion
ordinary shares;

« atthe date of this report the Company is in the process of raising up to $20 miilion through a share
purchase plan. This is expected to be completed by 23 October 2006,

Gther than the matters discussed above, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year
and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a materiat and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those
operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity, in future financial vears.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

Material ikely developments and expected results of operations of the consolidated entity have been notified to
the market ang include our investigation of further acquisitions and market opportunities.

Further information about likely developments in the operations of the conselidated entity and the expected
resulis of those operations in future financial years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the
information would be likely to result in unreascnable prejudice to the consolidated entity.

Environmental Reguiation
The consclidated entity's operations are subject to significant environmental regulation.
The consclidated entity holds environmental licences for its sites throughout Austratia and New Zealand.

The consolidated entity is committed to achieving the highest standards of environmental performance. There
were no material breaches of environmental statutory requirements and no material prosecutions during the year.

Meetings of Directors

The number of meetings of directors {including meetings of commitiees of directors) held during the financial year
and the number of meetings attended by each director were as follows:

AUDIT RISK MANAGEMENT NOMINATION &
AND COMPLIANCE REMUNERATION
BOARD MEETINGS™ COMMITTEE COMMITTEE™
MEETINGS MEETINGS MEETINGS
HELD WHILE NUMBER  HELD WHILE NUMBER  HELD WHILE NUMBER
DIRECTOR A DIRECTOR ATTENDED A MEMBER ATTENDED A MEMBER ATTENDED
T E Peabody 1l 11 * * 2 2
H L Wilson 11 11 * * 2 2
4 J Richards 1l g™ 4 4 * *
B R Brown 11 11 4 4 2 2
G D Mulfigan 11 11 4 4 w *
R J Ruston 4 3 * * 1 4
G F Sparks 4 4 * * " *
H W Grundell 11 11 * > * *

b Mot & member of the refevant commities.

** Mr Richards did not attend two board meetings due to confiicts of interest.

Directors’ interests

The relevant interest of each director in the shares and options over such instruments issued by the Company, as
notified by the directors to the Australian Stock Exchange in accordance with s205G(1) of the Corporations Act
2001, at the date of this report is as follows:

CFTHINS OVER UNISSUED

ORDINARY SHARES ORDINARY SHARES
EXECUTIVE
Terry Peabody 76,267 811 6,950,000
Howard Wilson - 1,600,000
Harold Grundell 125,000 500,000
NON-EXECUTIVE
Bruce Brown 100,000 503,000
Graham Mulligan 30,000 50,000

Bruce Allan - -
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REMUNERATION REPORT
REMUNERATION POLICY

The key driver of Transpacific’'s remuneration policy is to atiract and retain top quality directors and executives to
ensure the continued success of the Group for the benefit of all our stakeholders.

The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:
A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
B Details of remuneration

C Service agreements

) Share-based compensation.

A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

The objective of the company’s executive remuneration framework is to ensure remuneration for performance is
competitive and appropriate for the results delivered. The framework aligns executive remuneration with
achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value for shareholders, and conforms with market best
practice for defivery of reward. in our business it is assumed that all environmental and safety requirements are
satisfied but there are penalties in our remuneration framework if they are not. The Board ensures that executive
remuneration satisfies the following key criteria for good corporate governance practices:

« competitiveness and reasonableness;
« acceptability and transparency to shareholders; and

« performarnce linkage/alignment of executive compensation to financial results, safety requirements,
environmental compliance and contribution to continuous improvement initiatives.

The company has structured an executive remuneration framework that is market competitive and complementary
to the reward strategy of the organisation.

Alignment to shareholders’ interests:
« has economic profit as a core component of plan design;
« focuses on sustained growth in sharehclder wealth, consisting of dividends and growth in share price;

« delivering constant return on assets as well as focusing the executive on key non-financial drivers of value;
and

« atiracts and retains high calibre executives.
Alignment to program participants’ interests:
« rewards capability and experience;
» reflects competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth;
« provides a clear structure for eaming rewards; and
« provides recognition for contribution.
The framework provides a mix of fixed and variable pay, and a blend of short and long-term incentives.

As executives gain seniority with the Group, the balance of this mix shifts to & higher proportion of
“at risk” remuneration.

The overall level of executive remuneration takes into account the performance of the consolidated entity over a
number of years, with greater emphasis given to the current and prior year.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing remuneration and performance and may
refer to external information on remuneration to establish remuneration policy and levels.

Page 24825
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Non-Executive Directors

Non-executive directors are paid directors’ fees. The payment of directors’ fees is to reflect the demands which
are made on, and the responsibilities of, the directors. Non-executive directors’ fees and payments are reviewed
annually by the Board and are determined within an aggregate directors’ fee pool limit, which is periodically
recommended for approval by shareholders. The maximum currently stands at $750,008 per annum, to be
apportioned among the Non-executive directors as the Board determines in its absolute discretion.

The Non-executive directors pre TP listing were also granted TPI share options which are discussed below.
Executives
Executive remuneration has four components:

« base salary and benefits;

» short-term performance incentives;

« long-term incentives through participation in the Transpacific Executive Share Option Plan; and

« other remuneration such as superannuation.

Base salary

Executives are offered a competitive base salary that comprises the fixed component of remuneration. Base
satary for senior executives is reviewed annually fo ensure it is competitive with the market.
An executive’s salary is alsc reviewed on promotion.

There are no guaranteed salary pay increases included in any senior execulives’ contracts.
Benefits

Executives may receive benefits including car allowances, mobile phone and car parking.
Refirement benefils

Retirement benefits are not provided with the exception of statutory superannuation. Other retirement benefits
may be provided directly by the company if approved by shareholders but there are none at this time.

Short-term incentives {Incentive Compensation - 1C)

Shouid the company achieve a pre-determined profit target set by management and approved by the Board then
an 1€ pool is available for allocation to executives during the annual review. Using a profit target ensures variable
reward is only available when value has been created for shareholders and when profit is consistent with the
business plan.

Each executive has a target IC opportunity depending on the accountabilities of the role and organisation or
business unit performance. For senior executives the maximum target 1€ bonus opportunity is 50% of total base
salary. Each year, the Remuneration Committee considers the appropriate targets and key performance
indicators (KPIs) to link the IC plan and the level of payout if targets are met. This includes setling any maximum
payout under the 1C plan, and minimum levels of performance to trigger payment of an IC.

For the year ended 38 June 2608, the KPis linked to short-term incentive ptans were based on group and
individua! business objectives. These KPls are generic across the senior executive team.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for assessing whether the KPls are met. To help
make this assessment, the commitiee receives detailed reporis on performance from management.

ICs may be adjusted up or down in line with under or over achievement against the target performance levels, but
cannot be adjusted to exceed the maximum payable. This is at the discretion of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

Cash IC {bonuses} are payable in September each year after the financial year's resulis are compiled, audited
and released to the market. This ensures transparency and shareholders can see the link between shareholder
returns and employee remuneration.
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Long-term incentives (Transpacific Executive Share Option Flan)
Information on the Transpacific Executive Share Option Plan is set out on page 59. In short, however, the options
granted to the Non-executive directors and certain executives vest in equal tranches over three years providing
EBITA forecasts for year ended 30 June 2008 set out in the Transpacific Prospectus dated 29 March 2005 are
met or exceeded. On achieving this target, 75% of the options vest if total shareholder return {TPI share price
increment over offer price plus dividend) totals at least 15% per annum on a cumulative basis and 25% vest if the
volume weighted average price of TPI shares has ouiperformed the S&P/ASX200 (less financials) by 5% on a
cumuiative basis since the date the Company listed on the official list. The options granted to date were issued
for no consideration. From time to time, the Board will recommend that fusther options be issued in order to
attract, incentivise and reward executives and Non-executive directors. Staff eligible to participate in the plan are
senior management and Non-executive directors nominated by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee.
B Details of remuneration
Details of the nature and amount of each major element of remuneration of each director of the Company and
each of the five named Company executives and relative group executives who receive the highest remuneration
are set out in the following tables. You will see the base fixed components and the “at risk” performance related
compenents discussed above. The options have been costed in accordance with methedology set out in O below.
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS OF TRANSPACIFIC INDUSTRIES GROUP LTD
SHARE- BASED  POST
SHORT-TERM PAYIENTS EMPLOYMENT
NON- SUPER- % OF REMUSN-
SALARY STICASH MONETARY ANNUATION ERATION
AND FEES BONUS BENEFITS CPTIONS BENEFITS TOTAL  PERFORMANCE
% $ § § 3 $ RELATED
EXECUTIVE
Terry Psabody — 2008 347 844 - 27182 - 31,315 A58 4571 -
— 2005 267 898 - 16,845 - 24,043 311,886 -
Howard Wilson  — 2008 366,171 146,805 4,553 195 429 47 545 760,703 19.3% (A)
— 2008 287 006 152,400 148,300 32,571 45,358 676,633 225%
Harald Grundelt — 2008 208 479 96,330 28,857 97 714 27,523 459 903 20.9% (A)
— 2008 202176 162,600 27,697 16,288 27 429 376,182 27 2%
Geoff Sparks® — 20086 205,204 31,193 17,953 97714 21,275 373,338 8.4% (B)
— 2008 202176 162,600 21,490 16,288 27 429 369,975 27 7%
NON-EXECUTIVE
John Richards® — 2008 45,871 - - 8,771 4,128 58,770 -
— 2005 13.054 - - 1,829 1,178 15,858
Bruce Brown — 2008 45 871 - - 9,771 4,128 59 770 -
— 2005 15,290 - - 1,629 1,378 18,285
Graham Mulligan — 2006 45,871 - - 8,771 4,128 59,770 -
— 2008 28,875 - - 1,629 2,599 33,103
Rod Ruston* — 2008 28,166 5,700 - 34 866 -
— 2008 18 589 - - 1,629 - 20,218
Totat — 2006 1,285,577 274428 78,555 425870 146,142 2,214 572
Totat — 2005 1,045,052 357.600 218,432 71,659 129,467 1,822,150

¥ Resigned 25 January 2008.  In respect of Geoff Sparks, he continued as an employee. Al his remunaration is included in this note.

* Rasigned 23 August 2008
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REMUNERATION OF THE KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL OF THE CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

SHARE-BASED POST
SHORT-TERM PAYMENTS EMPLOYMENT

MNON- SUPER- % OF
SALARY STi CASH MOMETARY ANNUATEON FREMIMERATION
AND FEES BOMUS BEMEFITS CPTIONS BEMEFITS TCTAL PERFORMANCE
§ % $ $ g & RELATED
Stewart Smith - 2006 178,928 76,147 18,452 146,571 22,957 443,065 17.2% (A)
2005 177,311 80,765 23,006 24,429 23227 328738 24.6%
Paul Glavac  — 2008 200,004 . 26,123 97,714 18,000 341,841 -(C)
2005 183,336 100,000 27,237 16,286 25 500 352 350 28 4%
Terry Woods  — 2008 223,678 96,330 1,680 97,714 26,793 448,095 21.8% (A)
— 2005 177,586 100,000 27,222 16,286 26,458 347 552 28 8%
Nick Badyk — 2006 215,829 94312 16,151 97,714 27,208 451,215 20.9% (A)
- 2006 163,850 30,000 38,696 16,286 21,337 270,168 11.1%
Trevor Coonan® — 2006 218,917 113,636 3,344 97,714 32,255 485,866 24.4% (A)
- 2006 143,989 100,000 4,100 16,286 21,959 286 334 34.9%
Greg Campheli™ — 2006 144,820 81,279 . 14,918 - 221,017 27.7% {A)
- 2006 . . . . . . .
Tony Roderick™ — 2006 94,835 26758 5,959 15803 13,328 156,683 17.1% (D)
- 2006 - . - . . . .

Totat ~2006 1276911 468 462 71,708 668,148 140,542 2525772

Totat - 2006 846,072 410,765 120,261 89,573 118,481 1,585 152

* Commenced employment as Chisf Financial Officer on 4 October 2004,

*  Commenced employment as Managing Director, New Zealand on 17 Oclober 2005, Safary has been converted into AUD at the average
exchange rate from commencement date fo 38 June 2008

=+ Commenced employment as Managing Director, Liguid Waste Division on 1 Decembear 2805

Notes relating to short-term incentives

Amounts included in remuneration for the financial year represents the amount that vested in the financial year
based on achievement of personal goais and satisfaction of specified performance criteria. No amounts vest in

future financial years in respect of the bonus schemes for the 20086 financial year.

{A) Executives received 100% of their applicable {C {shost-term incentive);

{B} Executive received 33% of their applicable I1C {shori-term incentive);

{C) Executive recetved 0% of their applicable IC (short-term incentive);

{D) Executive received 50% of their applicable 1€ {short-term incentive) for the period of employment.

The amounts of ICs forfeited are due to the performance or service criteria not being met in relation to the

cusrent financial year.
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C Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Executive Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and the
executives specified above are formalised in executive service agreements. Each of these agreements provide
for a performance-related cash IC (bonuses), other benefits including car allowances, and participation, when
eligible, in the Transpacific Executive Share Option Plan. The agreements are ongoing and reviewed on a
periodic basis. Terry Peabody’'s and Howard Wilson's agreement may be terminated on six months' notice. The
other agreements may be terminated by the Company or the executive at any time on cne months’ notice. There
are no non-statutory termination benefits provided for in the service agreements.

) Share based compensation

Details on options over ordinary shares in the Company that were granted as compensation to each key
management person during the reporting pericd and details on options that were vested during the reporting
period are as follows:

NUMBER OF NUMBER OF

OPITONS OPTFIONS FAIR VALUE PER EXERCISE

GRANTED VESTED OPTION AT PRICE PER
BIRECTORS BURING 2006 GRANT DATE DURING 2006 GRANT DATE {$} OPTION (%) EXPIRY DATE
Greg Campbell 150,000 & November 2005 - 37¢cto B5¢ $4.26 31 July 2008
150,000 24 April 2006 - 31631038223 $8.53 31 July 2010
Tony Roderick 150,000 17 February 2006 - 88cto $1.25 $5.40 31 July 2010
150,000 24 April 2006 - 31631038223 $8.53 31 July 2010

A further 200,000 options have been granted to key management subsequent to year end as outlined on page 30.
The options were provided at no cost to the recipients.

No options vested or were exercisable during the reporting pericd.

Options are exercisable in three equal tranches, and are conditional on the consolidated entity achieving certain
performance hurdies. Details of the performance criteria are included in the long-term incentives discussion on
page 27.

The amounts discleosed for remuneration relating to options above are the assessed fair values at grant date of
options granted to directors and other executives, allocated over the period from grant date to vesting date. Fair
values at grant date are independently determined using a binomial pricing model incorporating a Monte-Carlo
simuiation that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the optien, the vesting and perfermance criteria,
the impact of dilution, the non-tradeable nature of the option, the share price at grant date and expected volatility
of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option.

Further details, including grant dates and exercise dates regarding options granted to executives under the
Executive Share Option Plan are in note 32 to the financial statements.

No terms of equity-settied share-based payment transactions have been altered or modified by the issuing entity
during the reporting period.
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Details of the vesting profile of the options granted as remuneration to each director of the Company and each of
the key management executives of the consolidated entity are set out below.

OPTIONS GRANTED
VALUE OF FINAMCIAL
OPTIONS AS % VESTED YEARS IN
PROPORTION oR WHICH
OF REMUN- FORFEITED GRANT
ERATION NUMBER DATE IN YEAR VEBTS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Terry Peabody - - - -
Howard Wilson 25F% 1,600,000 3 May 2005 - A
Harold Grundel 21.2% 500,000 3 May 2005 -
NOMN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
John Richards 16.3% 50,000 3 May 2005 - A
Bruce Brown 16.3% 50,000 3 May 2005 - A
Graham Mulligan 16.3% 50,000 3 May 2005 -
SPECIFIED EXECUTIVES
Stewart Smith 33.1% 750,000 3 May 2005 - A
Paul Glavac 2886% 500,000 3 May 2005 - A
Terry Woods 21.8% 500,000 3 May 2005 - A
Nick Badyk 21.7% 500,000 3 May 2005 - A
Frevor Coonan 21.0% 500,000 3 May 2005 - A
Geoff Sparks 282% 500,000 3 May 2005 - A
Greg Campbeli 8.9% 150,000 & November 2005 - A
150,000 24 Aprit 2008 - B
100,000 14 September 2008 - B
Tony Roderick 18.1% 150,000 17 February 2008 - B
150,000 24 April 2008 - B
100,000 14 Septembear 2006 - B

A - Options vest in equal tranches over tiree years commencing financial year baginning 1 July 2008,

B - Opfions vest in equal tranches over three years commencing financial yaar beginning § July 2007,
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Shares Under Option

At the date of this report unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option are:

NUMBER
UNDER
DATE QPTIONS GRANTED EXPIRY DATE EXERCISE PRICE OPTION
3 May 2005 - Non-executive Directors and
Executives * 31 July 2009 $2.40 6,681,667
3 May 2005 - Brenzil Pty Lid 31 July 2609 $2.76 to $3.65 6,950,000
8 November 2006 - Executives 31 July 2009 $4.20 150,000
17 February 2006 — Executives 31 July 2010 $5.40 350,000
24 April 2006 — Executives 31 July 2010 $8.53 728,000
13 September 2006 - Executives 31 July 2010 $7.25 850,000
15,708,667

* Includes two retired directors.

These options do not entitle the holder to participate in any share issue of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Shares iasued on the Exercise of Options

During or since the end of the financial year to the date of this report, the Company issued ordinary shares as a
resulf of the exercise of options as follows {(there were no amounts unpaid on the shares issued):

MNUMBER OF SHARES AMOUNT PAID ON EACH SHARE

268,333 $2.40

Directore’ and Officers’ Insurance

During the financial year the Company paid insurance premiums to insure the directors and officers of the
Company.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be
brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of entities in the consolidated entity, and any other
payments arising from Habilities incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings, other than where
such labilities arise out of conduct involving a wilful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the
officers of their position or of information to gain advantage for themselves or someone else or to cause detriment
to the Company. It is not possible to apportion the premium between amounts relating to the insurance against
tegal costs and those relating to other liabilities.

Fage 30831
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Non-Audit Services

The Company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where
the auditor's expertise and experience with the Company and/or the consolidated entity are important. During
financial year 2006 non-audit services included taxation compliance services and advice and due diligence
services. Non-audit services for financial year 2005 included taxation compliance services and advice, due
diligence services, accounting advice and corporate sfructruring advice pre T listing on ASX.

The Board of Directors has considered the position and, in accordance with the advice recetved from the Audit,
Risk Management and Compliance Commitiee is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is
compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001
for the following reasons:;
« all non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company and
have been reviewed by the Audit, Risk Management and Compliance Committee to ensure they do not
impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

« the non-audit services provided do not undermine the generat principles relating to auditor independence
as set out in Professional Statement &1 Professional Independence, as they did not involve reviewing or
auditing the auditor's own work, acting in @ management or decision-making capacity for the Company,
acting as advocate for the Company or jointly sharing risks and rewards.

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditer (Bentleys MR! Brisbane Partnership), and its related
practices for audit and non-audit services is set out below.

CONSOUDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2006 2008 2008
F000 000 000 $000
Bentieys MR Brisbane Partnership 408 248 - -
Overseas auditors associated with Bentleys MR &4 33 - -
490 278 - .
Amounts recetved for other services:
Bentleys MR! Brisbane Partnership and Bentleys
MRI (Qid) Pty Lid 79 201 - -
Overseas auditors associated with Bentleys MRI 79 - - -
158 201 - .

The lead auditor’s independence declaration is set out on page 33 and forms part of the Directors’ Report for
financial year ended 30 June 2006,

Rounding of Amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1898 and in accordance with that
Class Order, amounts in the Financial Report and Directors’ Report have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand dollars, uniess otherwise stated.

This report s made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

§ry 2
ard

T E Peabody
Chairman
Brisbane, 18 September 2006
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LEAD AUBTOR'S INDEPENDERGE DECLARATION
UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 20061
TO THE DIRECTORS OF TRANSPACIFIC INDUSTRIES GROUP LIMITED

| desclare that, (o the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation o the audif for the financial
year anded 30 June 2008, thers have been:

{a) e conigeantions of the aodifr independence reoguisermandy ag set oul inthe
Corporations Aot 2001 in reladion to the audit; and

B} o conyavantions of any applicable code of professional congdust in relation to the
audif.

Wenpes fad(Bldly,
Hentleys WA
Brishane Pannership

(N Yostn,

H i Powor iPartnsr)

{rishane, 15th Sepieriber 2006
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Income Statements
Forthe Year Ended 30 June 2006

CONSCLIDATED THE COMPANY
20086 2008 2008 2008

NOTES £000 $000 000 $000
Revenue 2 646,638 464 147 - -
Other income 2 2,330 8,785 - .
EXPENSES
Cost of sales (391,436} (264 951) - -
Employee expenses {91,209y  (B7,248) {1,8086) (228)
Depreciation and amortisation expernses {24,826y  (19,132) - “
Repairs and maintenance {16,817y  (10,568) . .
Fuel purchases {12,891) {8,648) - “
Leasing charges {10,510} {5,738) - -
Freight costs {6,804} {4,878) . .
Waste disposai {2,001} {4,818) - .
{nitial public offering costs 4 - {4,449 - {4,448)
Other expenses {16,920y  (39,388) (779) .
Profit before financing costs 81,374 51,122 {2,385) {4675
Financiat income 3 551 1,060 45 797 19,463
Financial expense {186,520y {9.915) {11,534) {1,101)
Net financing {costs)/income {15,969} {8.855) 34,263 18,362
Share of net profits of associates accounted for
using the equity method 1,807 1,305 - “
Profit before tax 87,212 43572 31,878 13.887
Income tax expense 5 {19,142y  (12,038) {15,500) {8.504)
Profit after tax for the year 48,070 31,534 16,378 5,183
Net profit attributable to minority interests {585} {1,068) “ .
Profit attributable to members of the parent 47 475 20,566 16,378 5183
Earnings per share for profit attributable to
the ordinary equity holders of the company:
Basic earnings per share 30 238 19.5¢
Diluted earnings per share 30 221 19.1¢
Assuming capital resfructure in ptace for full year:
Basic earnings per share 30 238 11.4¢
Diluted earnings per share 30 221 10.7¢

The above income statements showuid be read in conjunclion with the accampanying notes.
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Statements of Recognised Income and Expense

Forthe Year Ended 30 June 2006

Fage 34835

CONSOUDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2008 2008 2005
NOTES $000 $000 $000 000
Cash flow hedges
Gain/(loss} taken to equity 20 2,748 (2,163} 1,467 {767}
Translation of foreign operations
Exchange differences taken to equity 20 (9.873) {399} . -
Revaluation of assets
Asset revaluation taken to equity 20 - 6,525 - -
Net {loss)/lincome recognised
directly in equity (7.125) 4,023 1,467 (767)
Profit for the period 48,070 31,834 18,378 5,183
Total recognised income and expense for
the period 40,945 35,857 17,845 4416
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 44,350 33,589 17,845 44186
Minority interest 595 1,868 - .
Total recognised income
and expense for the period 44,945 35,857 17,845 4418

Other movements in eoguity arising from transactions with awners a8 ownars are sat out in note 20.

The above statements of recognised income and expansa should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 38 June 2006
CONSOUDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2008 2008 2005

NOTES $000 £000 $000 000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis 5] 55,336 37,754 16,646 12,609
Trade and other receivables 7 06,400 62,502 220,717 127 862
Inventories 8 69,710 80,300 - -
Other assets 9 8,934 4,534 700 500
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 230,389 185,009 238,083 140,780
Investments accounted for using the equity
method 10 9,242 7,387 “ -
Investments 11 82 99 109,242 74,073
Froperty, plant and equipment 12 214,527 154,081 .
Inventories - 3,262 - -
Intangible assets 13 148,276 70,870 -
Deferred tax assets 9,204 12,091 8,971 8,054
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 379,331 243,690 118,213 82127
TOTAL ASSETS 809,720 433,789 386,276 222,907
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 14 98,776 80,267 162 383
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 15 23,772 34,937 - -
Income tax payabie 16 7,495 7616 7,545 5,683
Employee benefits 10,534 8,354 - .
Provisions 17 10,897 16,219 8,500 12,600
Other 18 6,873 8,121 - 767
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 155,347 155,454 14,207 18,833
Other payables 14 656 7415 -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 15 260,181 132,688 212.203 106,800
Deferred tax liabilities 5 6,620 4,964 5.550 2,438
Employee benefits 3,803 3,138 - .
Provisions 17 288 7.147 - 6,500
Deferred government grants 1,400 700 - -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 272,948 156,050 217,753 115,736
TOTAL LIABILITIES 428,295 311,504 231,960 134 569
NET ASSETS 181,425 122,285 124,316 88,338
EQUITY
Issued capital 20 121,921 96,873 121,921 96,673
Reserves 20 {1,476) 4,249 2,326 (541)
Retained sarnings 20 57,640 18,880 69 (7.794)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of
the parent 178,085 119,602 124,316 88,338
kinority interest 20 3.340 2,683 - -
TOTAL EQLHTY 181,425 122,285 124,316 88,338

The shove balance sheets should he read in conpunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash Flow Statements

Forthe Year Ended 30 June 2006
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CONSOUDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2006 2008 2005
NOTES 000 000 $000 $000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers {inclusive of GST) 673,003 400,602 - -
Payments to suppliers and emplovees (inclusive
of G8T) (570,503) {413.478) (533} -
143,490 77,124 {533) .
Other revenue 1,029 700 - -
Interest received 613 1,060 10,797 -
Interest paid {15,628) {10,788) {11,287} {1,227)
Income taxes paid {15,604) (3,468) {11,045) .
NET CASH FROMAUSED IN} OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 23 73,800 84 828 {12,068} {1,227)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of equity and other
investments, net of cash acquired 24 {60,415) {6,373) - -
Payments for purchase of businesses 24 {66,568) {22 632) - -
FPayments for property, plant and equipment {22,146) (25,404) - .
Proceeds from disposat of property, plant and
equipment 3,524 15,261 - -
NET CASH (USED INY INVESTING ACTIVITIES {145,608) (39,148) - -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of dividend to pre-iPO shareholders {12,000) - {12,000} -
Interim dividend paid (8,515) - {8,515) -
Dividend reinvestment ptan and underwrite 8515 - 8,515 -
Receipts on behalf of suppliers - 5,168 - -
Net movement in trade and vendor finance {13,218) (2,967) - -
Payment of aqulity raising costs (2,893) {1,949) {2,893) {1,948)
Payment of debt raising costs {(4,800) - {4,800) -
Repayment of bank loans {47.625) - -
Proceeds from bank loans 120,032 106,800 110,700 106,900
Repayment of iease liabilities {(8,176) {5,599) - -
Repayment of toans by/(to) related parties 2,047 (58,920) - -
Loans made to controlled entities - - (74,802) (81,118
NET CASH FROMAUSED IN} FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 80,892 {4,992) 16,105 13,838
NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD 18,287 20,488 4,037 12,808
Cash at the beginning of the financial year 37,754 17,665 12,609 -
Net foreign exchange differences (705) (399) - -
CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 8 58,336 37,754 16,646 12,608

The above statements of cash flows shauld be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Transpacific industries Group Lid {the “Company”) is a company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated
financial report of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2008 comprises the Company and its
subsidiaries (fogether referred to as the 'consolidated entity’} and the consolidated entity’s interest in asscciates.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 18 September 20086,

The finanicial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian
Acceunting Standards (AASHs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the
Corporations Act 2001, International Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRSs) form the basis of Australian
Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the AASE, and for the purpose of this report are called Australian
eguivalents to IFRS (AIFRS) to distinguish from previous Australian AGAAP. The financial reports of the
consolidated entity and the Company also comply with FRSs and interpretations adopted by the international
Accounting Standards Board.

The finanicial report is presented in Australian dollars and is prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain assets which, as noted, are at valuation.

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1898 {updated by CO 05/641
effective 28 July 2005 and CO 06/51 effective 31 January 20086) and in accordance with that Class Crder,
amounts in the financiat report and Direclors’ Report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars,
uniess otherwise stated.

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances, their resulis of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These accounting policies have
been consistently applied by each entity in the consolidated entity.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied constantly to all periods presented in the consolidated
financial report and in preparing apening AIFRS batance sheet at 1 July 2004 for the purposes of transition to
Australian Accounting Standards — AIFRS.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently by all entities in the consolidated entity.
(A) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
{iy Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, o govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or
convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at their cost of acquisition in the Company's financial statements.
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{A} BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

{i)

(i)

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the consolidated entity has significant influence, but not contro,
over the financial and operating policies. The consolidated financial statements inchudes the
consolidated entity's share of the total recognised gains and losses of associates on an equity accounted
basis, from the date that significant influence commences uniti! the date that significant influerice ceases.
When the consolidated entity's carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the consolidated entity has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intragroup balances and any unrealised gainsg and losses or income and expenses arising from
intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates are eliminated to the extent of the
consolidated entity's interest in the entity with adjustments made 1o the ‘Investment in associates’ and
‘Share of associates net profit’ accounts.

Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment. Gains or losses are recognised as the contributed assets are consumed or
sold by the associates or, if not consumed or sold by the associate, when the consolidated entity’s
interest in such entities is disposed of.

(8} INCOME TAX

®

{

i)

Current tax

Current tax is calculated by reference o the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of
the taxable profit or taxable loss for the period. 1t is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date. Cusrent tax for current and prior periods is
recogrised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid or refundable.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method in respect of
temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabifities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principte, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available
against which deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses can be utilised. However, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities {other than as a result of a business combination} which affects
neither taxable income nor accounting profit. Fusthermore, a deferred tax liability is not recognised in
relation to taxable temporary differences arising from goodwill.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the income statement, except when it
relates to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
directly in equity, or where it arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, in which case it
is taken into account in the determination of goodwill or excess.
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(B)

(C)

(D}

INCOME TAX {CONTINUED)

{iv} Tax consolidation
The company and ali its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax-consolidated group
under Australian taxation law. Transpacific Industries Group L.td is the head entity in the tax
consolidation group, and as a conseguence recognises current and deferred tax amounts relating to
transactions, events and balances of the wholly-owned Austratian controlled entities in this group as if
those transactions, events and balances were is own, in addition to the current and deferred tax
amounts arising in relation to its own transactions, events and balances. The tax consolidated group has
riot entered into a tax sharing agreement.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

{iy Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date
are transiated to Ausfralian dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on transtation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and
Hiabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
cusrencies that are stated at fair value are transiated to Australian dollars at foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

{# Financial statements of foreign operations
The assets and liabifities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
consolidation, are translated to Australian dotlars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations, excluding foreign operations in
hyperinflationary economies, are translated to Australian dollars at rates approximating to the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations
in hyperinflationary economies are translated to Australian dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation are recognised directly in
a separate component of equity.

{iify Net investment in foreign operations
Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
related hedges are taken to transiation reserve. They are released into the income statement upon
disposal.

In respect of all foreign operations, any differences that have arisen after 1 July 2004, the date of
transition to AIFRS, are presented as a separate component of equity.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The consolidated entity enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
foreign exchange and interest rate risk, including forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swaps.
Derivatives financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value. Subseguent to initial recognition,
derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. However, where the derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the consclidated entity would receive or pay
o terminate the swap at the balance date, taking into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is their
quoted market price at the balance sheet date, being the present value of the quoted forward price.
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(D} DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Cn entering into a hedging relationship, the consolidated entity designates certain derivatives as either
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments {fair vaiue hedges), hedges of
highty probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

(i} Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and gualify as fair value hedges are recorded
in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or Hability
that is attributable to the hedged risk.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedge instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised,
or ne tonger qualifies for hedge accounting. The adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item
arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

(5} Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges are deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the period when the hedged item is recognised
in profit or loss. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged resulis in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or liabifity, the gains and iosses previously deferred in equity are tfransferred from
equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss deferred
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(it} Net investment hedge
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any
gain or loss on the hedging instrument refating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
Gainsg and losses deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve are recognised immediately in profit
or loss when the foreign operation is disposed of.

{iv} Derivatives that do not gualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any
derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

{v} Embedded derivatives
Dertvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are reated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of host contracts and the
hiost contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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(E)

REVENUE

Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid. Revenue from
the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buver and can be measured refiably. Risks and rewards are considered passed to the buyer at
the time of delivery of goods to customers. Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon
delivery of services to the customer. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

{y Liguid waste management and recycling
Revenue from the collection and treatment of liquid waste is recognised after the waste has been
coltected and treated and the related costs incurred.

(i Liguid waste management and recycling
Revenue is recognised on the sale of oil and by-products to customers.

(i) Industrial solutions
Contract revenue is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date and actual costs incurred.
Other revenue is recognised upon the delfivery of goods or sesvices to customers.

(v} Commercial vehicles
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer and can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards are considered
passed to the buyer at the time of delivery of goods to customers.

{V} Interest
Interest revenue is recognised on an accruals basis taking into account the inferest rates applicable to
the financiat assets.

{vi} Dividends
Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established. Dividends
received from associates are accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting.

{vii} Government Grants
Government Grants are initially recognised in the balance sheet as deferred income when there is
reasonable assurance that it will be received and that the consolidated entity will comply with the
conditions attaching to it. Grants that compensate the consolidated entity for expenses incusred are
recognised as revenue in the income statement on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the consolidated entity for the cost of an asset are
recognised in the income statement as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
assel.

{viii) Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue has been established.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

All trade debtors are recognised and carried at original invoice amount as they are due for settlement no
more than 30 days from the date of invoice. On special occasions the commercial vehicles group may give
extended terms. Collectibility of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is raised when collection of the full amount is no
longer probable.
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(G) INVENTORIES

(H)

inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on
the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of stock on the basis of
standard costs which reflect actuat costs and vehicles are valued at actual cost.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At each repotting date, the consolidated entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from
other assets, the consoclidated entity estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. An
impairment of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
cosits to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adiusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {(or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease {refer note 1{I}).

Where an impairment loss subseguently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only 1o the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceead the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset {cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately, uniess the relevant asset is carried at fair vaiue, in which case the
reversatl of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase (refer note 1(1)}.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation. Fair value is determined on
the basis of regular independent valuations prepared by external valuation experts, based on their value in
use. The fair values are recognised in the financial statements of the consolidated entity, and are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that the carrying value of land and buildings is not materially
cifferent from their fair vaiues.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land and buildings is credited to the asset revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised
as an expense in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited te the income statement to the extent of
the decrease previously charged. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaiuation of land and
buildings s charged as an expense in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in
the asset revaluation reserve relating to a previcus revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued property, the atiributable revaluation surplus remaining in the asset revaluation reserve, net of any
related deferred taxes, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Plant and equipment, and equipment under finance lease are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. In the
event that settlement of all or part of the purchase consideration is deferred, cost is determined by
discounting the amounts payable in the future to their present value as at the date of acquisition.
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{)

(K)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
{Jepreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings but excluding land.

{epreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so as to write off the net cost or other revalued amount of
each asset over its expected useful life to the consolidated entity. Leasehold improvements are depreciated
over the period of the lease or estimated useful ives, whichever is the shorter, using the straight line method.
Estimates of remaining useful lives are made on a reguiar basis for all assets, with annual reassessments for
major items. The expected useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 25 - 40 years
Plant and equipment 2.5 - 20 years
Leasehold improvement 5.0 - 10 years
LEASES

L.eases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

{i} Finance leases
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised at their fair value or, if lower, at amounts equal
to the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding Hability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly against income, uniess they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the consolidated entity’s general policy on finance costs. Refer to note 1
{N).

Finance leases are depreciated on over the shorter of the estimated usefut life of the asset or the lease
term.

(i} Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

INTANGIBLES

iy Goodwill
Business combinations prior to 1 July 2004
Goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed costs, which represents the amount recorded under
previous AGAAP. The classification and accounting treatment of business combinations that occurred
prior to 1 July 2004 has niot been reconsidered in preparing the consolidated entity’s opening AIFRS
balance sheet at 1 July 2004 (see note 34).

Business combinations since 1 July 2004

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill represents the
differenice between cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and s no longer amortised but is tested annually for impairment {see note 1{H}). In
respect of agsociates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment in the associate.

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised directly in profit or loss as a profit on acquisition.
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(Ky INTANGIBLES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Research and Development
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new technical knowledge and
understanding, is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are apptied to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised i the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the consolidated entity has sufficient resources to
complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses {see note 1{H)).

{iity Other intangible assets

{iv)

Other intangible assets include customer contracts recognised on business combinations and licences.
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the consolidated entity are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation {see below} and impairment losses (see note 1(H}).

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-fine basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Goodwill and intangible assets with an indefinite useful
tife are systematically tested for impairment at each balanice sheet date. Other intangible assets are
amortised from the date they are available for use. The estimated usefu! lives are as follows:

Licences 5 to 10 years
Other 3to 5 years

(LY TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other pavables are stated at their amortised cost.

Trade payables are non-interegst bearing and are normally setfled on 3€ day terms.

(M) INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are recognised initially at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. Subseguent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised costs with any difference between costs and redemption value being
recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

(N} FINANCE COSTS
Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Finance costs include;

+ interest on bank overdrafts and shori-term and long-term borrowings, including amounts paid or
received on interest rate swaps;

+« amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings;
+« amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings; and

+« finance lease charges.

There have been no qualifying assets and related debt to which finance cosis could have been applied, and
as a result no finance costs have been capitalised to qualifying assets.
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(O}

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Plant of the consolidated entity is required to be overhauled on a regular basis. This is managed as part of
an ongoing major cychical maintenance program. The costs of this maintenarnice are charged as expenses as
incurred, except where they refate to the replacement of a component of an asset, in which case the costs
are capitalised and depreciated in accordance with note 1{l). Other routine operating maintenance, repair
and minor renewal costs are also charged as expenses as incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The directors have elected under section 334(5) of the Corporations Act 2001 to apply Accounting Standard
AASB 119 Employee Benefits, even though the Standard is niot required to be applied unti annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

{iy Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and vesting sick leave
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other creditors and
provision for employee entitlements in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are setfled. Liabilities for non-vesting
sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable.

{if} Long service leave
The Hability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 manths of the reporting date is
recognised in the provision for employee benefits and is measured in accordance with (i) above. The
Hability for ong service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date is
recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures
ang periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting
date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

{i#y Short-term incentive compensation {IC's)y/bonus plans
A liability for employee benefits in the form of 1C's is recognised when the Nomination and Remuneration
committee determines that {C criteria has been achieved and an amount is payable in accordance with
the terms of the {C plan.

Liabilities for IC's are expected {o be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are seitled.

{iv)} Employee benefit on-costs
Emplovee benefit on-costs, including payroll tax, are recognised and included in employee benefit
Habilities and costs when the employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities.

{v} Share-based payment fransactions
Share-based payments are provided to directors and employees via the Transpacific Industries Group
Executive Share Oplion Scheme.

Share-based compensation payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. Fair value is
measured by an external valuer using a binomial model. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions, and behavioural considerations.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the share-based payments is expensed, with a
cosresponding increase in equity, on a straight-dine basis over the vesting period, based on the
consolidated entity's estimate of shares that will eventually vest.
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(Q) PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the consclidated entity has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects cusrent market assessments of the time vatue of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the lability.

{y Warranties
A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products are sold. The provision is based
on historical warranty data and a weighiing of all possible cutcomes against their probabilifies.

(i} Site restoration
In accordance with the consolidated entity's environmental poficy, and applicable legal requirements, a
provision for site restoration in respect of contaminated fand is recognised when the land is
contaminated.
The provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the restoration obligation at the
reporting date, based on current legal requirements and technology. Future restoration costs are
reviewed annually and any charges reflected in the present value of the restoration provision at the end
of the reporting pericd.

{R} CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

M

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, short-term bills and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the consolidated entity's cash management position
are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

INVESTMENTS

All investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and including
acquisition charges associated with the investment. After initial recogrition, interests in fisted and unlisted
securities, other than controiled entities and associates in the consolidated financial statemenis, are
measured at fair value.

For investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference
to Stock Exchange gquoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For
investments where there in no quoted market price, fair vaiue is calculated based on the expected cash flows
from the underlying net asset base of the investment.

Controfled entities and associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as set out in
Note 1{A).

ISSUED CAPITAL

tesued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the company. Any
transaction costs incurred by the company arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in
equity as a reduction of the share proceeds received.

(U} INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER (IPO) COSTS

v

in accordance with the prospectus issued in 2005 the Company paid 48% and the vending shareholders paid
51% of the PO costs. New equity was not raised so these costs were expensed in the statement of financiat
performance.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

{iy Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing net profit after income tax atiributable to members of
the company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Forthe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2006 {continued)

V)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(i Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for
no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

For the year ended 30 June 2005 Earnings Per Share has been calculated on the basis referred to above
and on the capital structure following listing on the ASX as this is considered more meaningfut and
reflective of the ongoing position of the Company.

(W) GOODS AND SERVICES TAX

v

Revenue, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax {(GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the
GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of G5T included. The net amount of GSY recoverable
from, or payable to, the ATQ is included as a current asset or liabifity in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST compenent of cash flows
ansing from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are
classified as operating cash flows.

ISSUED STANDARDS NOT EARLY ADOPTED

The foltowing standards and amendments were available for earty adoption but have not been applied by the
consolidated entity in these financial statements:

APPLICATION DATE OF YHE
AASH NAME GF STANDARDS SETANDARD

New standards

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure 1 January 2007
Amendments

20051 Amendments to Accounting Standards 1 January 2008
2005-5 Amendments to Accounting Standards [AASE 1 and AASE 139] 1 January 2008
20056 Amendments to Accounting Standards [AASE 3] 1 January 2008

2005-9 Amendmenits to Accounting Standards [AASE 4, AASE 1023, AASB 139 1 January 2008
and AASE 132)

200510 Amendments to Accounting Standards [AASE 132, AAB 101, AASB 114, 1 January 2007
AASB 117, AASE 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB 1023 and
AASE 1038]

2006--1 Amendmenits to Accounting Standards [AASE 121] 1 January 2008

The consolidated entity plans to adopt these standards in the 2007 financial year. The initial application of
AASB 2005-9 could have an impact on the financiat resuits as it may result in liabilities being recognised for
financial guarantee contracts. However the quantification of the impact is not known or reasonably estimable
in the current financial yvear as an exercise to quantify the financial impact has not yet been undertaken. The
initiat application of the rematning new standards and amendments is not expected to have an impact on the
financial results of the consolidated entity as they are mainly concerned with disclosures.
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CONSOLIDATED

THE COMPANY

2608

2005

2608

2008

$000 $000 F000 $000
2 Revenue and Other Income
REVENUE
Sale of Goods and Services 634,204 458 592 - -
Product Stewardship Oif benefits 8,271 6,221 - -
Other revenue 8,073 2,334 - -
846 538 464,147 - .
OTHER INCOME
Profit on acguisition of businesses 1,713 4,745 - -
Foreign currency exchange gains - 1,850 - -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 617 190 - -
2330 6,785 - .
TOTAL REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 648,968 470,932 - -
3 Net financing costs
Interest income {551) {1.060) {10,797) (083)
Dividend income - wholly owned subsidiaries - - {35,000) (18,500)
Financiat income {551) {1,060) {45,797) {19,463)
Interest expense 16,520 9,915 11,534 1,11
Financial expenses 16,520 9,915 11,534 1,101
Net financing costs {income) 15,969 8,855 {34,263) {18,362
4 Significant {income)} and Expense ltems
Foreign currency exchange {gain) on aircraft - {1,850} - -
White down in value of aircraft - 1,442 - -
Initial public offer costs - 4,449 - 4,449
Write off costs associated with bid for
Brambles industrial Services and Cleanaway 1,042 - - -
1,042 4,041 . 4,449
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2005 2006 2006
NOTES $000 $900 000 000
5 income Tax
(A} RECOGNISED IN THE INCOME STATEMENT
Current tax expense
Current year 14,982 9,988 13,302 B 605
Adjustments for prior years {39y 1758 - -
14,043 10,163 13,302 5,608
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 4,760 1,878 2,759 2,89
Benefit of tax losses recognised {561} - (561) -
4,199 1,875 2,198 2,899
Totat income tax expense in income statement 19,142 12,338 15,500 8,504

(B) NUMERICAL RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE AND PRE-TAX NET PROFIT

Profit before tax 87,212 43,872 31,878 13,887
Income tax using the domestic corporation tax

rate of 30% (2008: 30%) 20,164 13,072 9,563 4108
Increasef{decrease) in income tax expense due to;

Rebateable dividends - - {10,500} {5,550)
Share of associates’ net profits (542) (392) - -
Non-deductible expenses/non-assessable

Effect of tax losses recognised (561) - (561) -

Tax tiabilities assumed by uitimate Australian
parent entity - - 18,823 8,708

income tax expensel{benefit} on transfer of
deferred tax balances on application of tax

consolidation - - {2,045 1172
Uniderf{over} provision in prior years (39) 175 . .
Other 88 169 - -
Differential tax rate on overseas income 150 100 - -
Income tax expense on pre-tax net profit 19,142 12,338 15,500 8,504

(C} DEFERRED TAX RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY

Relating to revaluation of property, plant and
equipment - 2,797 - -
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CONSOUDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
NOTES $000 F000 000 %000
5 income Tax {continued}
Deferred income tax in the Batance Sheet at 30 June 2006 refates to the following:
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits 3,537 2,961 3,526 1,254
Provisions 1,891 3,168 1,828 1.837
Finance leases 492 102 490 4
Tax losses 6526 3,739 321 3,578
PO Costs — blackhole expenditure 801 1,068 801 4,068
Other 1,857 1,082 2,005 318
9,204 12,091 8,971 8,054
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 1,458 1,364 1,443 667
Deferred income 867 352 867 -
Gther 319 451 443 345
Revatuation of land and buildings to fair value 3,978 2,797 2,797 1424
6,620 4,964 5,550 2436
Deferred income tax expense in the Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2006 relates to the following:
Deferred tax assets
Employee post empioyment benefits (538) {595) {537} (489)
Provisions 420 {379) 430 {185)
Finance leases (30} {11} {30} 122
Tax losses 3,674 4,382 3818 3,174
PO Costs — blackhole expenditure 267 {1,068) 267 {1,068)
Other 528 48 {1122 321
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, ptant and equipment (503} (548) (408) (226)
Other 383 48 1,827 78
Revatuation of land and buildings to fair value - - - -
Transfer of deferred taxes to head entity - - {2,045) 1,172
4,198 1,875 2,198 2,899
6 Cash
Cash at bank and on hand 22 874 22 866 “ 6,409
Short-term deposits 32,462 14,888 16,796 6,200
Bank overdrafis - - {180} -
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow
statement 55,338 37,754 16,646 12,600

Cash at bank and on hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Short-term deposits are at call, and earmn inferest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Short-term deposits include a deposit of $16,708,000, which is a security deposit in relation o a bank loan.

Fage 50851
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CONSOLIDATED

THE COMPANY

2006 2005 2006 2008
NOTES $000 £000 $000 $000
7 Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables 91,268 57.353 - -
L.ess: Provision for doubtful debts {629} {608y - -
90,639 56,745 - -
Other receivables 5128 3,183 - -
Amounts owing - related parties and 278
associates &C 642 2,584 220,717 127,662
96,409 62,502 220,717 127,662
8 inventories
Raw materials and consumables — at cost 373 412 - -
Work in progress — at cost 1,027 633 - -
Finished goods — at cost 69,143 80,825 . .
Less provision for obsolescence (833) {1,661) - -
69,710 80,308 - .
9 Other Assets
Derivatives 700 - 700 .
Prapayments 1,652 1,300 - -
Other current assets 6,582 3,234 - 508
8,934 4,534 700 508
10 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method
Investments in associates 0,242 7,387 - -
11 Investments
investments in controlled entities at cost - - 100,242 74073
Other investments at cost 8z 98 . .
82 98 100,242 74,073
12 Property, Plant and Equipment
LAND
Balance at beginning of year 19,320 8,016
Additions through business combinations 710668 948
Additions 9409 8,638
Disposais (270) {1,404}
Transfer to assets held for sale - {3,000)
Revatuation - 7,122
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {1,038) “
Balance at end of year 34,524 18,320
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

2008 2006 2006 2008

$000 2060 $000 $000

12 Property, Plant and Equipment {continued)

BUILDINGS
Balance at beginning of year 27.808 16,037 - .
Additions through business combinations 8,681 200 . .
Additions 2473 8,540 - -
Disposais (748) {1,038} . .
Transfer to assets held for sale - (262 - -
Revaiuation - 1,800 - -
Depreciation (828) {569} . .
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {1,013 - . -
Balance at end of year 34,385 27,808 - .
LEASEMOLD IMPROVEMENTS
Balance at beginning of year 311 198 - -
Additions 43 153 - -
Disposals {18} - - .
Depreciation 82) {40y - -
Balance at end of year 257 311 - -
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Balance at beginning of year 100,500 77,432 . -
Additions through business combinations 41,767 20,952 - -
Additions 19,148 20,968 - -
Disposais {1.873) {1,050} . .
Revatuation on acquisition - 300 - “
Depreciation {23 480) {18,003 . .
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {2.188) - - -
Balance at end of year 133,885 104,509 - .
AIRCRAFT
Balance at beginning of year - 13,000 - -
Write down in value - {1,442} - -
Disposais - {11,558 - “
Balance at end of year - - - -
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Balance at beginning of year 7,033 7.168 - -
Net movement 4,443 {135} - .
Balance at end of year 11476 7.033 - -
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2006 2006 2008
$000 %000 $900 $000
12 Property, Plant and Equipment {continued)
TOTAL PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Balance at beginning of year 154,981 125,881 -
Additions through business combinations 55,558 22,100 -
Additions 31,073 36,299 -
Disposais {2,208) {15,050} -
Transfer to assets held for sale - {3,262) -
Revaluation - 9,322 .
Depreciation {24,388) {18,702} -
Write down in vaiue of aircraft - {1,442) -
Net movement in capital WiP 4443 {135) -
Effect of movement in exchange rates {4,234) - -
Balance at end of year 214,527 154,981 -

VALUATIONS

On 28 February 2005 an independent valuation was obtained to determine fair value of land and buildings
which was determined by reference to an open market basis, being the amount for which the assets couid be
exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arms length
transaction at the valuation date. The revaluations of land and huildings were based on independent
assessments by a member of the Australian Property Institute. Fair value is determined by reference to
market-based evidence, which is the amounts for which the assets could be exchanged between a
knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm’s length transaction as at the
valuation date.

Any revaluation surptus is credited to the asset revaluation reserve included in the equity section of the
balance sheet. Any revaluation deficit directly offsetling a previcus surplus in the same asset is directly offset
against the surplus in the asset revaluation reserve, otherwise it is charged to the net profit or loss.

If {and and buildings were measured using the cost model the carrying amounts would be as follows:

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

2006 2005 2006 2008

000 $000 000 000
LAND
Cost 27 402 12,188 - -
BUILDINGS
Cost 38,354 30,313 - -
Accumutated depreciation {4.969) {4,143}
Net carrying amount 34,385 26,170

LEASED PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The carrying amount of plant and equipment held under finance lease and hire purchase contracts at 30 June
20086 is $34 254,000 (2005 $30,180,000). Leased assets and assets under hire purchase contracts are
pledged as secusity for the related finance lease and hire purchase liabilities.
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2008 2006 2008
000 $000 $000 $000
13 Intangibles

GOODWILL
Balance at beginning of year 64 265 30,039 - .
Additions through business combinations 55218 34,226 - -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {4,932)
Balance at end of year 114,552 64,265 - -
PATENTS AND LICENCES
Balance at beginning of year 1,860 1,280 - .
Additicns through business combinations - 1,080 - -
Additions 99
Amortisation {430) {430y - .
Balance at end of year 1,529 1,860 - .
OTHER INTANGIBLES
Balance at beginning of year 4745 -
Additions through business combinations 25,525 4,745 -
Amortisation {78) “ -
Balance at end of year 30,198 4,745 .
TOTAL INTANGIBLES
Balance at beginning of year 70,870 31,329
Acquisitions through business combinations 80,843 39,071 -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {4,932) “
Amortisation (505) {(430) .
Balance at end of year 146,276 78,870 .

Fage 54856

Other infangibles includes customer contracts valued at $22,364,000 (2005: $4,745,000) which are considered
to have an indefinite life as the contracts are evergreen contracts and have no expiry dates.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2008, all intangible assets were tested for impairment as required by
AASE 138 Impairment of Assets. No impairment loss was charged for continuing operations in the 2006
financial year.

The consclidated entity has muitiple cash generating units. There are no individual cash generating units with
significant goodwil.

The recoverabte amounts of the cash generating units have been based on value in use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on actual operating results and financial budgets approved by
management. Cash flows are extrapolated over 10 years using a 3% growth rate for the first 3 years and nit
growth thereafter. Both of these assumptions are deemed conservative as there are no intentions to dispose
of any businesses and the historic growth rate of the consolidated entity is greater than 3%. A pre-tax discount
rate of 7% has been used in discounting the projected cash flows. Management betieves that any possible
change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2006 2008 2006
NOTES £000 000 £000 000
14 Trade and Other Payables
CURRENT:
Trade payables 59,387 38,276 - -
Other payables and accruals 22,710 34,137 162 383
Payables to related parties and associates 27C 1,800 1,850 - -
Deferred setilements 11,779 5,844 - -
958,776 80,207 162 383
NON-CURRENT:
Deferred setilements - 6,711 - -
Amounts payable to related parties 27C 656 704 . -
656 7,415 - .
15 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings
CURRENT:
UNSECURED:
Trade and vendor finance 14,843 28,060 - .
SECURED: -
Obligations under finance teases and hire
purchase liabilities 8,929 6.877 3 -
23,772 34,937 - -
NON-CURRENT:
UNSECURED:
Bank loans 213,738 106,800 212,203 106,800
Loans from related parties 270 2,479 2,260 - -
216,217 148,060 212,203 106,800
SECURED:
Bank loans 16,796 - - -
Obligations under finance leases and hire
purchase liabilities 27,168 23,628 B B
43,064 23,628 - -

260,181 132,688 212,203 106,800
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15 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings {continued)

FINANCING FACILITIES

The Company and its 100% owned subsidiaries had unrestricted access at 30 June 2006 to an unsecured $280
miliion syndicated multi-option facility (2005; $218million}. The Facility Agreement was for a period of three years
from 3 May 2005.

In addition at 38 June 2006 the Company and its 100% owned subsidiaries had facilities in place in readiness to
be drawn down on 3 July 2006 {when conditions precedent were satisfied) in connection with the Waste
kManagement NZ Ltd amalgamation and pay out of the $280 million facility. These additional facilities represented
an unsecured $1billion syndicated multi-option facility, and a $300 million bridge facility.

The Group operated under the $280 million facility until 3 July 2008 when it was rolled into the $1 billion facility.
On 31 August 2006 the $1 billion facility was increased to $1.2 billion, and during August and September the $300
miltion bridge was repaid by apptlication of equity proceeds as detailed in note 33.

The new $1.2 billion Facility Agreement runs for five years, with varying tranche maturities within the agreement,
and includes covenants usual to an unsecured facility.

The Company and consolidated entity can also borrow outside the facility.

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets recognised in the financial statemenis
revert to the lessor in the event of default.

Fage 56857

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
$000 000 $000 000
DEBT FACILITIES
Total facilities available 308,633 219,958 . .
Facifiies utilised at batance date {283,883) {186,257 . -
Facilities not utilised at balance date 24750 53,609 - .
Facilities used at balance date include $11.7 million (2005: $13.3 million) in guarantees and tetters of credit which
are off the balance sheet. Refer Note 25,
16 Current Tax Liabilities
Income tax payable 7,495 7618 7.545 5883

17 Provisions

CURRENT

Provision for warranty

Balance at beginning of year 2,751 -
Provisions made during the year 2,831 -
Provisions used during the year (1,985) -
Provisions reversed during the year {388) -
Balance at end of year 3,209 -
Provision — Other

Balance at beginning of year 1,421 -
Provisionis made during the year 3,231 -
Provisions used during the year (3,524) -
Provisions reversed during the year {187) -

Balance at end of year 961 -
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2008 2008 2006
$000 $000 £000 $000
17 Provisions (continued)
CURRENT (CONTINUED)
Provision - Dividend
Balance at beginning of year 12,047 12,000
Provisions made during the year 8,515 8518
Provision acquired in business combination 180 -
Transter from non-current provision 6,500 6,500
Provisions used during the year {20,515} {20,515)
Balance at end of year 6727 8,500
Total current provisions
Balance at beginning of year 16,219 12,008
Provisions made during the year 14,577 8,515
Provision acquired in business combination 180 -
Transfer from non-current provision 6,500 8,500
Provisions used during the year {26,024} {20,515)
Provisions reversed during the year {555} -
Balance at end of year 10,897 8,500
NON-CURRENT
Provision - Dividend
Balance at beginning of year 6,500 8,500
Transfer to current provision {6,500} {6,500)
Balance at end of year - -
Provision - Site restoration
Balance at beginning of year 647 -
Provisions used during the year {359} .
Balance at end of year 288 .
Totat non-current provisions
Balance at beginning of year 7,147 6,500
Provisions used during the year {359} -
Transfer to current provision {6,500} {6,500)
Balance at end of year 288 .
18 Other Liabilities
Deferred income 6,819 5611 - -
Derivatives 54 2,510 - 767
8,873 8,11 - 767
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19 Employee benefits
(A} SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates an executive share Option Plan {'the Cption Plan®) approved by shareholders of the
Company in March 2005. Under the Option Plan the Board of Directors may issue options to non-executive
directors and executives of the Company. The Board determines the price, number, exercise price, expiry date
and relevant performance hurdles of options to be issued. There are no voting or dividend rights attached to the
options.

Lipon exercise of the options and payment of the exercise price, the executives are allotted one fully paid ordinary
share in the Company for each option heid.

On termination of employment of a participant generally the option lapses. In certain circumstances, the Board
may elect to aflow the terminating participant to retain their options.

On listing date of 3 May 2005, 6,950,000 options were issued to non-executive directors and selected executives
of the Company and consolidated entity at an exercise price equal to the IPO retail offer price of $2.40.

Subsequent to this date, the following options have been issued at an exercise price equal o the three day
volume weighted average share price prior to grant date:

DATE OPTIONS FIRST EXERCISE EXERCISE
GRANTED DATE ON OR AFTER EXPIRY DATE PRICE OPTIONS GRANTED

8 November 2005 31 August 2006 31 July 2009 $4.26 150,000
17 February 2006 31 August 2007 31 July 2010 $5.40 350,000
24 April 2006 31 August 2007 31 July 2010 $8.53 725,000

Onptions issued under the option plan are exercisable in three equal tranches and will vest when the following
conditions have baen met:

{iy 75% of each tranche of options vest if total shareholder return (TP share price increment over share price at
grant date plus dividends paid) totals at least 15% per annum on a cumulative basis.

{iiy 25% of each tranche of options vest if the volume weighted average price of TPI shares has cutperformed the
S&P/ASX200 {less financials) by 5% on a cumulative basis.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE NUMBER OF EXERCISE NUMBER OF
PRICE CETHING PRICE OPFTICNS
SO0G 2006 ) 2006
Outstanding at the beginning of the period $2.40 6,950,000 - -
Granted during the period §7.1 1,225,000 $240 6,950,000
Cutstanding at the end of the period $3.11 8,175,000 $2.40 6,850,000

Excercisable at the end of the period - -

The options outstanding at 30 June 2006 have an exercise price in the range of $2.40 to $8.53 and a weightec
average contractual life of 3.2 years.

No options vested or were exarcised during the financial year.

The fair value of the options are estimated at the date of grant using the binominal model incorporating a Monte-
Carlo simulation.

The total share-based payment expense included in the income statement is set out in note 20(03).
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18 Employee benefits (continued)

The following table gives the assumptions made in determining the value of the options granted during the year:

3 NOVEMEER 2008 15 FEBRUARY 2008

24 APRIL 2006

Expected life Tranche 1
Tranche 2
Tranche 3

Volatility - Transpacific

Volatility - S&P/ASX200

Rigk free interest rate Tranche 1
Tranche 2
Tranche 3

Dividend yield — Transpacific

Dividend yield — S&P/ASX200

0.9 1.5

1.9 2.5

29 3.5
24.31% 30.0%
9.56% 9.0%
5.49% 5.23%
5.47% 5.18%
5.5% 5.18%
2.48% 21%
4.0% 4.2%

14
24
34
30.0%
9.0%
5.51%
5.51%
5.52%
1.3%
4.2%

{B) DEEINED CONTRIBUTION SUPERANNUATION

FUNDS

The consclidated entity makes contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds. The amount
recognised as expense for financial vear ended 30 June 2006 was $4,346,000 {2005: §3,822,000)

20 Equity
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2008 2006 2008
#0600 2000 $'000 $'005
(A) ISSUED CAPITAL
Ordinary shares - lssued and fully paid 121,921 96,673 121,921 96,673
2008 2005
NUMBER NUMEBER
OF SHARES £000 OF SHARES 000
{B) MOVEMENTS IN ORDINARY SHARES
Balance at the beginning of the vear 200,600,000 96673 03,361,318 74073
Issued during the financial year:
- shares issued for business acquisitions 2,777,193 16,733 9,418,667 22,600
- dividend reinvestment plan and
underwrite agreement 979,508 8,515 - -
- share split at listing - - 97,222,015 -
BALANCE AT THE END OF THE YEAR 203,756,701 121,921 260,000,000 96,673

Effective 1 July 1998, the Company Law Review Act abotished the concept of par value shares and the concept
of authorised capital. Accordingly, the Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its
issued shares. Crdinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in
proportion to the number of shares held. Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by

proxy, at a meeting of the company.
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20 Equity {continued)}

{C) SHARE OPTIONS

Executive Share Option Plan

The details of the Executive Share Option Plan are set out at Note 19.

Brenzil Pty Lid Option Deed

The Company entered into an option deed with Brenzil Pty Lid, an entity associated with the Peabody family
interests, in March 2005. These opticns are intended to enable the Peabody family to retain effective control as

the Non-executive director and executive options are exercised. There are no voting or dividend rights attached
to the options. Details of these options are as follows.

OPT?OAE EXERCISE DATE ON EXERCISE OPTIONS  NUMBER OF OPTIONS
GRANTED OR AFTER EXPIRY DATE PRICE GRANTED AT END OF YEAR
ON ISSUE VESTED
BRENZIL PTY LTD SHARE OPTIONS
3 May 2008 31 August 2008 31 July 2008 $2.76 2,316,667 2,316,667 -
3 May 2005 31 August 2007 31 July 2008 $3.17 2 316,667 2,316,867 .
3 May 2005 31 August 2008 31 July 2008 $3.65 2 316,666 2,316,666 .
Gutstanding at the end of the period 8,950,000 6,950,000 -
CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
20086 2006 2008 2008
£000 2000 $000 $000
(D) RESERVES
Foreign currency transiation reserve {10,272) (399) - .
Employee equity benefits reserve 1,628 228 1,628 226
Hedging reserve 645 {2,103) 700 {767}
Asset revaluation reserve 6,528 6,525 - -
{1,478} 4 249 2,328 {541)

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Nature and purpose of reserve
The foreign currency transiation reserve is used to record differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. It is alse used to record the net investment hedged in these secusities.
Movements:

Foreign currency translation reserve:
Opening balance (389) . - .

Exchange differences taken to equity {9.873) {399) - -

CLOSING BALANCE (10,272) (399) . ]

Fage 80861
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2608 2008 2005
000 FO00 F000 F000

20 Equity {continued)
(D} RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Nature and purpose of reserve
The asset revaiuation reserve is used 1o record revaluations of non-current assets.

Movements:

Asset revaluation reserve:

Opening balance 6,528 - - -

Asset revaluation taken to equity - 6,525 - -

CLOSING BALANCE 6,525 6,528 . -
Medging Reserve

Nature and purpose of reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedge transactions that have not yet occurred.

Movements:

Hedging reserve:

Opening balance {(2,103) - {787 -
Gainf{loss) taken to equlity 2,748 {2,103) 1,467 {767}
CLOSING BALANCE 845 (2,103) 700 {767}

Employee Equify Benefils Reserve
Nature and purpose of reserve

The employee equity benefits reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as
part of their remuneration. Refer to note 19 for further details of these plans

Movements:
Employee equity benefits reserve:
Cpening balance 228 - 226 -
Share based payment expense 4,400 228 1,400 226
CLOSING BALANCE 1628 228 1,826 226
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2608 2008 2005
000 FO00 F000 F000

20 Equity {continued)
(DIDIVIDENDS

Declared and paid during the year:

interim franked dividend for 2006: 4.2 cents 8515 - 8,815 -
Special fully franked dividend declared on

8 March 2005 to minority shareholders

{$47,000 per share) - 47 - -

Special fully franked dividend declared on
8 March 2005 to pre-iP0O shareholders
{19.82¢ per share) - 18,500 - 18,500

TOTAL DIVIDENDS DECLARED FOR PAYMENT 8,515 18,847 8,518 18,800

The dividend payabie o pre-IPO sharehotders is subject to a dividend deferral deed. $8,500,000 remains
payable at 38 June 2006 (2008: $18,500,000), with payment due 30 June 2007.

After the balance sheet date the following dividend was proposed by the directors. The dividend has niot been
provided for. The declaration and subsequent payment of the dividend hias no income tax consequences.

Proposed for :
Final franked dividend for 2006: 5.1 cents 11.495 B 11,495 -

THE COMPANY
2006 2005
%000 $000
(E) FRANKING CREDIT BALANCE
30% franking credits available to shareholders of
Transpacific Industries Group Ltd for subseguent
financial years 13,230 2,901

The above available amounts are based on the batance of the franking account at year-end, adjusted for:
ay franking credits that will arise from the payment of cusrent tax liabilities;
b} franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the year-end;
¢y franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables by the tax
consolidated group at the year-end; and
d} franking credits that the entity may be prevented from distributing in subsequent years.

The impact on the franking account of dividends proposed after balance date but not recognised as a liabifity is to
reduce it by $4,826,000. In accordance with the tax consolidation legisiation, the Company as the head entity in
the tax-consolidated group has also assumed the benefit of $1,207 000 (2005: $153,502) franking credits.
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2008 2008 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000
20 Equity {continued)
(F} RETAINED PROFEITS
Retained profits at beginning of year 18,680 7.661 (7.704) 5523
Net profit attributable to members of the parent
entity 47 A75 29,566 18,378 5,183
Dividends paid ~ interim dividend 2006 {8,515} - (8,518} -
Dividend paid — pre PO shareholders - {18,547} - {18,500)
Retained profits at end of year 57 640 18,880 69 (7.794)
(G} MINORITY INTEREST
interest in:
Contributed equity 2406 2.344 . .
Retained profits 934 339 - -
3,340 2683 - -
21 Consolidated Entities
INTEREST HELD BY
CONSOLIDATED COST OF THE COMPANY'S
ENTITY INVESTMENT
COUNTRY OF 2006 2005 2008 2006
ENTETY INCORPORATION % % $000 §760
Transpacific Industries Group Ltd - parent Australia
Transpacific Co Pty Lid Australia 100 100 20,853 20,853
Transpacific Resources Lid Australia 140 160
Transpacific Industries Group (NZ) Ltd New Zealand 100 -
Transpacific Industries Group Finance (NZ)Ltd ~ New Zealand 100 -
Waestern Star Trucks Australia Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 53,220 53,220
Man Automotive Imports Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Man Imports Py Lid Australia 100 100
MAN Automotive Imports {NZ) Ltd New Zealand 100 100
Transpacific Industries Pty Lid Australia 100 100
Australian Resource Recovery Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Associated Qils Pty Lid Australia 100 100
Environmental Recovery Services Pty Lid Australia 100 100
ERS Australia Pty Ltd Australa 100 100
Transpacific Ol Pty Lid Australia 100 160
Transpacific Energy Pty Ltd Australia 100 100

Kleenparis Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
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INTEREST HELD BY
CONSOLIDATED

COST OF THE COMPANY'S

ENTITY HNVESTMENT

COUNTRY OF 2006 2005 2006 2008

ENTITY INCORPORATION % % $000 $000

ERS New Zealand Ltd New Zealand 100 100 35,169

Time (N2 Lid New Zealand 100 -
United Environmental Ltd * New Zealand 100 -
Medismart Lic * New Zealand 100 -
Heaithcare Waste Lid * New Zealand 100 -
ERS Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100
ERS Services {Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia 160 160
ERS Taiwan Lid Taiwan 100 100
Transpacific Industrial Solutions (NZ) Lid New Zealand 100 -
Transpacific Technical Services (NZ) Lid New Zealand 100 -
Transpacific Group (N2) Lid New Zealand  1p0 .
Australian Terminal Services Piy Lid Australa  3.08 63.08
ATS Developments Pty Lid Australia 70 70
N( Resource Recovery Pty Lid Australia 100 09.5
Nationwide Oil Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Gil & Fuel Salvaging {Qld) Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Transpacific Refiners Pty Lid ® Australia 50 50
Trangpacific Bituminous Products Pty Ltd Australia 100 -
Transpacific Industrial Solutions Ply Lid Australia 100 99.99
Transpacific Waste Management Pty Ltd Australia 100 -
Transwaste Technelogies Piy Lid * Australia 100 -
Transwaste Technologies {1) Pty Lid Australia 100 -
Australian Poliution Engineering Pty Lid ® Australia 100 -
Solidsep Pty Ltd * Australia 400 .
QORS Pty Ltd Australia 51 51
Olmway Pty Lid 0 Australia &0 50
L.V Rawlinson & Associates Pty Ltd * Australia 80 -
Transpacific Biofuels Pty Lid Australia 50 .
Transpacific Manufacturing Systems P/L Australia 59 51

100,242 74073

it

Wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company have management controf and the casting vote of Transpaciic Refiners Py Ltd, Gimway Piy Ltg
and Transpacific Bicfuels Pty Lid and thus the Company has the capacity to domingte decision making in relation to the financial and
operating policies so as to enable those entities to operaie as part of the consolidated entity in pursuing its abjectives.

Acruired during the financial year. Refer to Note 24 for details.
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22 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

(A) DETAILS OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

CWNERSHIP INTEREST

PRINCIPAL REPORTING 2006 2005
EMTITY AGTIVITY COUNTRY DATE % %
Western Star Truck Centre Trust Truck and bus
dealership Australia 30 June 50 50
Total Waste Management Pty Lid Liguid waste
management Australia 31 December 56 50
Western Resource Recovery Ply Lid Liguid waste
management Australia 31 December 50 50
Mann Waste Management Pty Lid Liguid waste
Daniels Sharpsmart New Zealand Lid  Liguid waste New
maﬂagemeﬁt Zealand 30 June 50 -
ERS Co Pty Lid Industrial
services Taiwan 30 June 49 49
The reporting dates for Total Waste Management Pty Lid and Western Resource Recovery Pty Ltd are 31
December, which is the reporting date of the other 50% shareholder.
(B) SHARE OF ASSOCIATES BALANCE SHEET
CONSOUDATED
2006 2005
000 $000
Total agsets 23,401 20,505
Total liabilities {4,917} (5.821)
Net assets as reported by associates 18,484 14,774
Share of associate’s net assets equity accounted 0,242 7,387
(C} SHARE OF ASSOCIATES REVENUE AND PROFIT
Revenues {100%) 25,461 18,334
Profit before income tax{100%) 5,162 3,728
Share of associates profit before income tax 2,581 1,864
Share of income tax expense {774) {559)
Share of associates net profit/{loss) recognised 1.807 1,305

(D} IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no impairment losses relating to the investment in associates and no capital commitments or other

commitments relating to the associate.
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
20086 2006 2008 2008
£000 000 £000 $000
23 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the period 48,076 31,534 16,378 5,183
ADJUSTMENTS FOR:
Share options expensed 1,400 228 1,400 226
Profits on acqulisition of businesses {(1,713) {4,745) - -
Depreciation 17,212 13,001 - -
Amortisation 7614 8,041 - -
Bad and doubtfut debt expense 21 524 - “
Foreign exchange gain on loan - {1,850} - “
Dividends received from associates - - {(35,600) {18,500}
Share of associates’ net profits {1.807) {1,305) - -
Net {gain)floss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment B17) {(191) - .
Write down in value of aircraft - 1,442 - “
Operating profit before changes in assets and
liabilities 70,180 44 767 (17.222) {(13.001)
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Increasef(decrease) in receivables {27 ,423) {18,030) . (963)
(increase)/decrease in other assets {243) {2,367} - ({508)
(increase)/decrease in inventories 15,857 {4,486) - -
Increasef(decrease) in payables 10818 27,31 {221) 4832
increase/(decrease) in income fax payabie (499) 6,771 1,862 5670
{increase)/decrease in deferred taxes 3,198 1,881 3,513 2834
{Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 768 4,625 - -
Increasef{decrease) in other provisions 1,453 4,158 - -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 73,900 64,628 (12.068) {1.227)

{b} Non-cash financing and investing activities
During the 2008 year the consolidated entity acguired plant and equipment with an aggregate fair vaiue of
§13,1581,402 {2005: $11,146,867) by means of finance lease. These acguisitions are not reflected in the
statement of cash flows.
During the year ended 30 June 2006 2,777,193 {2005: 9,416, 667) ordinary shares were issued for a value of
$18,733,000 (2005: $22,600,000) as part settlement for business combinations and repayment of loans.
These share issues are not reflected in the statement of cash flows as they were not cash flows.
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24 Business Combinations

On 1 December 2005, the consolidated entity acquired the Nuplex Environmental Services Division, including
100% of the voting shares of Transwaste Technologies Pty Lid {formerly Nuplex Special Waste Pty Lid), an
untisted company based in Australia, and 100% of the voting shares of United Environmentat Lid and Medismart
Lid, unlisted companies based in New Zealand. These entities specialise in the collection, treatment, recycling

and disposal of liguid waste. Asscciated property was also acguired from another Nuplex entity.

From the date of acquisition, the business combination has contributed $1,892,000 to the profit before tax of the

consolidated entity.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the business combination as at the date of acguisition are:

CONSOLIDATED

RECOGNISED ON CARRYING
ACQUISITION VALUE
000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents 1,067 1,067
Trade debtors 4462 4,462
Inventories 192 192
Other current assets 191 191
Investment in Associates 30 30
Property, plant and eguipment 25,445 25,449
Deferred tax assets 064 855
Intangibles 12,981 1,733
45,338 33,979
Trade creditors and other {4.057) {4,057}
Employee entitlements {(608) {608}
Deferred tax liabilities {2,349) (2,349}
(7.014) (7,014}
Fair value of net assets 38,322 28,085
Profit arising on acquisition {B18)
Goodwill arising on acquisition 16,791
Total consideration paid 54 497
The cash outfiow on acguisition is
as foliows:
Net cash acquired with subsidiary 1,067
Total consideration paid {54,497}

(53,430)
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24 Business Combinations {continued}

On 27 March 20086, the consolidated entity acquired 100% of the voting shares of Australian Poliution Engineering
Pty Lid, an unfisted company based in Australia specialising in the treatment of biosolids.

From the date of acquisition, the business combination has contributed $400,000 to the profit before tax of the
consolidated entity.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the business combination as at the date of acguisition are:

CONSOLIDATED

RECOGNISED ON
AGOUISITHIN CARRYING VALUE

%000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,410 3,410
Trade and other receivables 3,876 3,855
Property, plant and eguipment 7.587 B87
14,873 7,852
Trade and other payables {545) {545)
(545) (545)
Fair value of net assets 14,328 7.307
Goodwil! arising on acquisition 5,780
Total consideration paid 20,108
Consideration:
Shares issued, at fair value 10,603
Costs associated with the acquisition 9,505
Total consideration paid 20,108
The cash outfiow on acquisition is as
follows:
Net cash acquired with subsidiary 3,410
Costs associated with the acquisition (9.505)
Deferred settlements 1,706

(4,389)

Fage 68869
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24 Business Combinations {continued)

On 1 December 2005, the consolidated entity acquired the tiquid waste and industrial services businesses of
Onyx based in New Zealand.

From the date of acquisition, these businesses have contributed $321,000 to the profit from ordinary activities
before tax.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these entities as at the date of acguisition are:

CONSOLIDATED

RECOGNISED ON
ACQUISITHON CARRYING VALUE

%000 $000

Other current assets 67 67

Froperty, plant and equipment 5,563 5,563

Intangibles 1833 -

7.263 5,630

Employee entitlements {143} {(143)

{143) {143

Fair value of net assets 7,120 5487
Goodwill arising on acquisition 6,464
Total consideration paid 13,584

The cash outflow on acguisition is
as foliows:
Total consideration paid {13,584}
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24 Business Combinations {continued)

Throughout the year the consolidated entity has acquired a number of business combinations which are

individuatly immaterial.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these entities as at the date of acquisition are:

CONSOLIDATED

RECOGNISED ON

ACQUISITION  CARRYING VALUE
%000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents 104 104
Trade debtors 369 369
Inventories 3,126 3126
Other current assets 1,640 1,640
Property, plant and equipment 16,958 16,958
Intangibles 10,911 129
Deferred tax assets 26 26
33,134 22,352
Trade creditors and other {976) (978)
Employee entitlements {280} {280)
Lease liabifities {616) (B18)
{1.872) {1,872)
Fair value of net assets 31,262 20,480
Profit arising on acquisition {1,087
Goodwill arising on acquisition 26,185
56,350
Consideration:
Shares issued, at fair value 6,130
Costs asscciated with the acquisition 50,220
Total consideration paid 56,350
The cash outfiow on acquisition is as follows:
Net cash acquired with businesses 104
Costs associated with the acquisition {50,220y
Deferred settlements 3,700
(46,416}

Included in the goodwill recognised on all of business combinations detailed above are certain intangible assets
that cannot be individually separated and reliably measured from the acquiree due to their nature. Assets

included in this balance consist of customer foyalty.

A totat of 2,777,193 ordinary shares were issued as part setilement of business combinations at an issue price

equal to the 3 day average share price prior to seftlement date.

The consclidated entity has a history of tuming businesses around, and as a result it is impracticable due to the
different ownership to measuse the contribution the above business combinations would have made to profit of

the consolidated entity for the financial year had the businesses been held for the full period.

Page 70&71
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2608 2008 2005
NOTES 000 FO00 000 F000

25 Commitments and Contingencies

{A) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The consclidated entity leases property, plant and equipment under operating leases expiring over terms of up to
six years. Leases generally provide the consolidated entity with a right of renewal at which time afl terms are
renegotiated.

Non-cancetlable operating lease rentals are
payable as follows:

Within onie year 5,782 3,350 - -
Between one and five years 13,124 6,897 - -
More than five years 1,407 508 . .

20,283 10,758 - -

(B} FINANCE LEASE AND HIRE PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

The consclidated entity leases plant and equipment under finance leases and hire purchase agreements expiring
over terms of up 1o six years. At the end of the lease term the consolidated entity generally has the option to
purchase the equipment at a percentage of market value.

Commitments in relation to finance leases
are payable as follows:

Within one year 10,751 8,963 - .
Between one and five years 30,838 26,482 - -
More than five years 308 521 - .
Miniimum lease payments 41,898 35,965 - .
Less:

Future finance charges {5.801) (5,461) - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,007 30,508 - -
Representing:

Current 15 8,929 6,877 - -
Non-cusrent 18 27,168 23,628 - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,007 30,508 - -
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CONSOUDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2006 2008 2005
£000 000 000 $000
25 Commitments and Contingencies {continued)
(C) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
Other commitments in relation to capital
expenditure and purchase commitments
entered into;
Within one vear 1,464 822 - .
COMMITMENTS NOT RECOGNISED IN
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1,464 822 - -

(D) GUARANTEES

The consclidated entity is, in the normal course of business, reguired to provide guarantees and letters of credit
on behalf of controlled entities and associates in respect of their contractual performance related obligations.
These guarantees and indemnities only give rise to a liability where the entity concerned fails to perform its

contractual obligations.

Letters of credit issued to suppliers 80 799 - -

Bank guarantees outstanding at balance

date in respect of financing facilities 3,713 6,164 - -

Bank guarantees outstanding at balance

date in respect of contractuai performance 7916 6,347 - -
14,709 13,310 - -

(£} LINGATION AND OTHER CLAIMS

A claim has been brought against a controlled entity for use of the Interline Technology. The action is being
defended and a counter-claim should it proceed has been made. in the Directors' opinion, the Company will be

successful in defending this case.

From time to time claims may be brought against the consotidated entity in the normal course of business.
Other than the matter referred to above the Directors is of the opinion that there are no other matters

requiring disclosure.
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CONSOUDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2008 2008 2005
NOTES £000 $000 000 $000
26 Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Services:
Auditors of the Company
Bentleys MR/
Audit and review of financial report 408 248 -
Overseas affiliates of Bentleys MR!
Audit and review of financial report 84 33 -
400 278 -
Other Services:
Bentieys MR 78 201
Overseas affiliates 79 - -
158 201 -

27 Related Parties

(A} KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Disclosures retfating to key management personnel are set out in Note 32.

(B} WHOLLY-OWNED GROUP TRANSACTIONS

The wholly-owned group consists of Transpacific Industries Group Ltd and its wholly-owned entities listed at

Note 21.

Transactions between Transpaciic Industries Group Ltd and other entities in the wholly-owned group during the
years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005 consisted of:

a}
b}
=
d)
e}

f

loans advanced by Transpacific Industries Group Litd and other wholly-owned entities;

loans repaid to Transpacific Industries Group Ltd and other wholly-owned entities;

the payment of interest on the above loans;

the payment of dividends to Transpacific Industries Group Ltd and other wholly-owned entities;
management fees charged to wholly-owned entities; and

sales between wholly-owned entities.

The above transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except that
there are no fixed terms for the repayment of principal on loans advanced. The average interest rate charged on
the loans during the year was 8.5% (2005 - 6.5%).
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27 Related Parties {continued}

Aggregate amounts included in the determination of profit before tax that resulted from transactions with entities

in the wholly-owned group:

THE COMPANY

2006 2004
2000 $000
Interest revenue 10,842 941
Dividend revenue 35,000 18,500

Aggregate amounts receivable from entities in the wholly-owned group at balance date:

THE COMPANY

2008 2005
000 F000

Current receivables (loans}
(C} OTHER RELATED PARTIES

220,717 127 662

CONSOUDATED THE COMPANY
2008 2008 2008 2005
$000 $900 $000 $000
Aggregate amounts included in the determination
of profit before tax that resulted from transactions
with each class of other related parties:
interest revenue
Associates 58 57 - -
interest expense
Director-related patties - 1,048 - -
Minority shareholders 173 331 - .
Aggregate amounts brought to account in relation to other
transactions with each class of other related parties:
Loans advanced to/{from):
Associates - 74
Minority shareholders {343) 250
Loan repayments {from):
Associates {1,525} -
Loan repayments to:
Director-related entities - 55,283
Minority shareholders 18% 3,961

Page 74&75
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CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
2006 2608 2006 2008
000 FO00 F000 $090

27 Related Parties {continued}
(C} OTHER RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Aggregate amounts receivable from, and
payable to, each class of other related parties at balance date:

Current receivables:

Associates 392 2,344
Director-related entities - -
Minority shareholders 250 250

642 2,594

Current payables:
Associates 1,000 1,900
Director-related entities - -
Winority shareholders - B0

1,900 1,650

Non-current payables:
Director-related entities - -
Kinority shareholders 656 704
658 704

Non-current interest Bearing Liabilities:
Director-related entities ~ -

Minority shareholders 2479 2,260
2479 2,260

Transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except that there are
no fixed terms for the repayment of loans between the parties. Interest was charged at 6.5% (2005 — 8.5%;).

A number of key management persons, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them
having confrol or significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities.

A niumber of these entitles transacted with the Company or its subsidiaries in the reporting period. The terms and
conditions of the transactions with management persons and their related parties were no more favourable than
those available, or which might reascnably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-director
related entities on an arms-length basis.

During financial year 2005, and as outlined in the IPO Prospectus, the consolidated entity owned an aircraft until
its sale on 30 March 2005 to an entity related to Terry Peabody. The consolidated entity continues to perform a
small amount of administrative work in relation to the aircraft. No charter revenue or costs, other than when
Transpacific hires the aircraft, are borne by Transpacific. Transpacific charges the related party $10,000 per
annum for administration time.

In financial year 2005 the value of the aircraft was written down by $1.4 million. A profit of $130,000 was
recognised on the sale of the aircraft.
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27 Related Parties {continued}

(C} OTHER RELATED PARTIES {CONTINUED)

During financial year 2006 the consolidated entity expensed $158,000 for the hire of the aircraft which was used
to fly Transpacific executives in connection with the acquisition of businesses, bank negotiations and investor
refations. Transpacific charged the related party $10,000 for administration. At 30 June 2006 the consolidated
entity owed $86,870 to the related party.

During financial year 2005 the following payments were made.

31 March to 3 May 2005 {date of listing) - Payment for hire of aircraft of $68 600 in relation to the IPG roadshow
has been expensed in PO costs. Administration fee charged to the related party was $904.

3 May to 30 June 2005

The Company paid $8,600 for the hire of the aircraft which was used to fly five Transpacific executives in
connection with the acquisition of businesses. This amount was capitalised. Administration fee charged to the
refated party was $1,589.

At 30 June 20085, $25,597 was receivable from the related party in connection with the supply of goods as a pass
through cost. The consolidated entity incurs no profit or loss on these transactions.

During financial year 2005, a group company held the liguor licence for the Australian business of an entity
refated to Terry Peabody and provided accounting services. The licence and business were transferred out of the
group effective 1 July 2005. The consolidated entity continues to perform a small amount of administrative work.
At 30 June 2008 the related party owed $105,144 {2005 $172 678) in respect of the business and its employees.
The consclidated entity incurs no profit or loss on these transactions.

The Company administered charters and costs in relation to an entity related to Terry Peabody. At 30 June 2008,
the retated party owed $193,477 to the Company {2005: $40,818}. The Company incurs no profit or loss on these
transactions.

The Company trades on normal commercial terms and conditions on an army's-length basis with companies
connected with two Non-executive directors — JJ Richards and Sons Pty Lid and Campbell Brothers Limited.

28 Segment information

Segment information is presented in respect of the consolidated entity’s business and geographical
segments. The primary format, business segments, is based on the consolidated entity’s management and
internal reporting structure.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

Segment resuits, assets and liabilities include items directly atiributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated tems comprise maindy options expense and profits on
business combinations.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the pericd to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

PRIMARY REPORTING ~ BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The consclidated entity comprises the following main business segments:

Liguid waste management and Includes collection, transportation, treatment and sale or disposal of
recyciing liquid waste
Energy Includes collection, transportation, treatment and sale or disposal of

waste minerat oil and cooking cil

Industrial solutions Includes industrial cleaning, high pressure water blasting and
manufacture and lease out of parts washers

Commercial vehicles Importation and distribution of commercial vehicles and parts

FPage 6&77
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28 Segment information {continued)

LIQUIC WASTE

MANAGEMENT INGUSTRIAL COMMERGIAL

& RECYCLING ENERGY SOLUTIONS VEMICLES  CONSOLIDATED
2006 §000 $000 %000 000 $000
Revenue
Sales to external customers 107 610 75,471 180,691 270,522 634,204
inter-segment sales 13,767 9,486 5,101 - 28,354
TOTAL SALES REVENUE 124,377 84,957 185,792 270,522 662 648
Other revenue 5,042 8,313 204 788 12,344
TOTAL SEGMENT REVENUE 126,419 91,270 185,096 271,307 674 992
Infer-segment elimination (28.354)
TOTAL CONSOLIDATED
REVENUE 646,638
Result
Segment resuit 21,830 17,238 20,088 23,007 82,163
Unaflocated revenue less . 700 ........................ ............ =
unallocated expenses (789)
PROFIT BEFORE FINANCE o 7
COSTS 81374
NetFmamoma s (15.969)
Share of profit of associates 1,807 - - - 1.807
e e T 19.142)
NETPROFIT 28,070
Segment assets 209,720 485,085 168,406 193,591 707,772
investments in associates 9,242 - - - 09,242
Unaliocated assets LS E R ER -
Elminations (107 204)
ToTALASSETS 505 720
Segment liabilities 301,307 23,253 96,778 114,251 535,589
Unaflocated liabilities L AR AR RS -
Eliminations (107 204)
ToTALLABLTES 726005
Depreciation and amortisation
exXpense 8,285 4,938 12,807 798 24826
Other significant non-cash .70 FE LT E TR R S
expenses (unallocated) 1,400
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 53,562 7,420 27,482 2610 91,074

*includes new leases entered into during the year
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2B Segment information {continued)

PRIMARY REPORTING ~ BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

LIGUIT WASTE

MANAGEMENT INDUSTRIAL COMMERGIAL

& RECYCLING ENERGY SOLUTIONS VEHICLES  CONSOLIDATED
2008 $000 $000 2000 000 $000
Revenue
Sales to external customers 43845 61,960 120,168 220818 455 592
Inter-segment sales 1,087 1,535 868 - 3,480
TOTAL SALES REVENUE 44,932 63,495 130,037 220818 459,082
Other revenue 792 6,231 11@ 1,413 8.555
TOTAL SEGMENT REVENUE 45724 69,726 130,156 222,031 467 637
Infer-segment efimination (3.490)
TOTAL CONSOLIDATED L
REVENUE 464 147
Result
Segment resuit 6,450 10,586 12,256 21,8683 50,975
Unallocated revenue less R TSR AEE AR LRI
unallocated expenses 147
PROFIT BEFORE FINANCE B R PR EER R ER PR RTINS
COSTS 51122
NetFmamema coss 3.655)
Share of profit of associates 1,305 - - - 1,305
o b omese 2.038)
~ET PROETT —_— 1 554
Segment assets * 201,042 LI 122 768 148,761 472,571
Investments in associates 7.387 - - 7,387
Unaflocated assets T IR R RS 21,172
Elminations 67.341)
TOTALASSETs 435780
Segment liabilities* 179147 93,6114 776834 350,392
Unaliccated liabilities 28,453
Efiminations {B67,341)
T TTITT N7 —— 311604
Depreciation and amortisation
exXpense 3,073 5,336 9,852 871 19,132
Other significant non-cash
expenses - . - 1,442 1,442
Acquisition of property, plant and S
equipment * ** 35,770 21,804 690 58,264

* Refer Note A below

* includes new leases entered into during the year
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28 Segment information {continued)

SECONDARY REPORTING ~ GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

In presenting information on the basis of geographic segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
tocation of business. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets:

Australia All four business segments have operations.
New Zealand All four business segments have operations.
South-East Asia Industrial services operations and commercial vehicles sales.

NEW SOUTH-EAST

AUSTRALIA ZEALAND ASiA TOTAL
2008 000 000 000 000
Sales to external customers 583,508 50,058 838 634,204
Segment net assets 108,002 73,120 213 181,428
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 63,498 27,576 - 91.074
NEW

AUSTRALIA ZEALAND SOUTH EAST TOTAL
2005 000 000 ASIA $000 000
Sales to external customers 427 919 26 658 1,015 455 502
Segment net assets 118,318 3,804 366 122,285
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 60,504 13,415 - 83,008

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE SEGMENT INFORMATION
(A} CHANGE IN SEGMENT ACCOUNTING POLICY

In the prior year segment reporting was broken into waste management and recycling, industriat solutions and
commercial vehicles divisions only as this reflected the management reporting structure of the Company at that
time. This year an improved management reporting system has been implemented and results are accounted for
in four segments. Comparative information has been restated to reflect this change where possible.

29 Financial Instruments

The consclidated entity's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise bank loans, finance
leases and hire purchase contracts, cash and short-term deposits.

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the consolidated entity’s operations.

The consclidated entity has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors, which
arise directly from its cperations.

The consclidated entity also enters into derivative transactions, principally interest rate swaps and forward
currency contracts. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the consolidated
entity’'s operations and #ts sources of finance.

it is the consclidated entity’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the consolidated entity’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, and credit risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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2% Financial Instruments (continued)

{A) FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Commercial Vehicles division sells vehicles and parts purchased from the United States and Germany. In
order to protect against exchange rate movements, the consolidated entity enters into forward exchange contracts
to purchase US dollars and Euro.

The contracts are timed to mature when major shipments are scheduled to arrive in Australia reflecting when the
Company has to pay for the goods and cover a proportion of anticipated purchases for the ensuing financial year.

Where necessary, the forward exchange contracts are rolled over at maturity.
The consclidated entity classifies its forward exchange confracts hedging forecasted transactions as cash flow

hedges and states them at fair value. The fair value of forward exchange contracts at 1 July 2004 was adjusted
against the opening balance of the hedging reserve at that date.

The net fair value of forward exchange contracts used as hedges of forecasted transactions at 38 June 2008 was
a liability of $54,000 (2005: Hability of $1,336,000) that were recognised in fair value derivatives.

The net fair value of forward exchange contracts treated as a fair value hedge at 30 June 2006 was nil {2008:
Hiability of $407,000).

(B) CREDIT RISK EXPOSUKRES

kManagement has a credit policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The consolidated entity does
niot require collateral in respect of financial assets.

The consclidated entity minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large number
of customers.

Credit risk on interest rate and foreign exchange contracts is minimal as counterparties are large Australian and
internationat banks with acceptable credit ratings determined by a recognised ratings agency.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet.

(C} INTEREST RATE RISK EXPOSURES

Hedging

The consclidated entity adopts a policy of ensuring at least 40% of its exposure to changes in interest rates on
borrowings is on a fixed rate basis. Accordingly, the consolidated entity has entered inte interest rate swap
contracts under which i is obliged to receive interest at variable rates and to pay interest at fixed rates. The
contracts are settled on a net basis and reguire setilement of net interest receivable or payable each 30 days.
Swaps currently in place cover approximately 44% {2005 - 75%;) of term debt cutstanding and expire August
2006, May 2010 and January 2011. The fixed interest rates currently range between BBSY 5.78% and 5.99%
{2005 5.94%- 5.99%) and the BBSY variable rate at balance date was 5.93%.

The consclidated entity classifies interest rate swaps as cash fiow hedges and states them at fair value. The fair
value of swaps at 1 July 2004 was adjusted against the opening balance of the hedging reserve at that date.

The net fair vaiue of swaps at 30 June 2006 was an asset of $700,000 (2005: liability of $767,000}. These
amounts were recognised as fair value derivatives.
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2% Financial iInstruments (continued)
Effective interest rates and repricing analysis

In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities of the consolidated entity, the
following table indicates their effective interest rates at balance sheet date and the periods in which they reprice.

EFFECTWE

INTEREST 1 YEAR 1_7 5_3 3-4 5-6
RATE OR LESS YEARS YEARS YE4RS YEARS
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY 2%} TOTAL Fo00 000 F000 000 000
20086
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and deposits 6.04% 56,336 55,336 . “ - -
Loans to related parties and 6.5% 542 64
. 5% . . . .
TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSBETS 55,078 55,978 - - N .
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and vendor finance 6.94% 14 843 14,843 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 6.85% 213,738 213,738 . - . .
Secured barnk loans — NZD 8.05% 16,796 2,774 3,122 3,345 3,622 3,833
Lease liabilities 6.95% 36,097 8,029 8,502 8,080 6,475 4,111
Payable to related parties
and associates 6.5% 2479 - 2479 - - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES 283,953 240,284 14,103 11,425 10,007 8044
EFFECTHVE
INTEREST 1 YEAR ) 2_3 3-4 46
RATE OR LESS YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY 9%} TOTAL Fo00 LO00 F000 000 000
2005
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and deposits 5.2% 37,754 37,754 . “ . -
TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS 37,754 37,754 - - - -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and vendor finance 6.62% 28,060 28,060 - B - -
Unsecured bank loans 6.61% 106,800 106,800 - - - -
Lease lizbilities 6.79% 30,505 6,877 7.185 6,828 5471 4,144
Payable to related parties
and associates 6.5% 2479 - 2,479 - - -

TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES - 167,844 141,737 9,664 6,828 5471 4,144
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2% Financial Instruments (continued)
In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities of the consolidated entity, the
following table indicates their effective interest rates at balance sheet date and the periods in which they reprice.
EFFECTHVE
INTEREST 1 YEAR 1_7 5_3 3-4 5-6
RATE OR LESS YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS
THE COMPANY {5} TOTAL §000 $000 $000 $000 $000
2008
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and deposits 7.15% 16,546 16,646 - - - .
Loans to related parties and 6.5% 220,717 220,717 - - - -
associates
TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS 237,363 237,383 - - - -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Unsecured bank loans 6.85% 212,203 212,203 - . - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES 212,203 212,203 - - - -
EFFECTHE
INTEREST 1 YEAR 1-2 2-3 3-4 46
RATE OR LESS YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS
THE COMPANY {5} TOTAL $000 2000 $000 000 $000
2005
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and deposits 5.2% 12,609 12,608 . “ . -
Loans o related parties and .
associates 6.5% 127,862 127,662 - - - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL
ASSETS 140,271 140,271 . - . -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Unsecured bank loans 8,61 106,800 106,800 - - - -
TOTAL FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES - 108,800 106,800 - - - -
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2% Financial Instruments (continued)
FAIR VALUES

A comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the consolidated entity's financial
instrumenits that are carried in the financial statements at other than fair values.

CARRYING CARRYING
CONSOLIDATED VALUE FAIR VALUE VALUE  FAIR VALUE
20086 2008 2008 2008
£000 000 $000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 55,336 55,336 37,754 37,754
Trade and other receivables 95,787 95,767 58,008 55,908
Loans to related parties and associates 642 642 2.584 2,584
interest rate swaps 700 700 - -
Financial liabifities
Trade and other payables - current {95,776} {95,776) {80,207} {80,207
(Gther payables — non-current {656} (B56) {7.415) (7415}
Trade and vendor finance {14,843 {14,843) (28,060) {28,080y
Unsecured bank loans (213,738 {213.,738) {106,800) {108,800}
Secured bank loans {18,796} {16,842} -
Loans from related parties (2,479} {(2,479) {2,260) (2,260}
Lease Habilities {36,178 {37.467) {30,508) {32,196}
interest rate swaps - - {767) {767}
Forward exchange contracts {55} {55} {1,743) {1,743}
(228,076} {228.411) {157,501) {158,192}
Unrecognised (losses)/gains {1,335} {1,681}
CARRYING CARRYING
THE COMPANY VALUE FAIR VALUE VALUE  FAIR VALUE
20086 2008 2008 2005
$000 £000 $000 £000
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 16,646 16,646 12,609 12,600
Loans to related parties and associates 220,717 220,717 127,662 127,662
interest rate swaps 700 700 - -
Financial liabifities
Trade and other payables {162} {162) (383) {383
Unisecured bank loans (212,203 (212,203) {106,800 {108,800}
interest rate swaps - - {767} {787}
25,608 25,808 32,321 32,321

Unrecognised (losses)/gains - -
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29 Financial Instruments (continued)

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial

instruments refiected in the table.
DERIVATIVES

Forward exchange contracts are either marked to market using listed market prices or by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the cusrent spot rate. For interest rate swaps broker quotes are used.

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and inferest cash flows.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at market interest rates for
homogeneous lease agreements. The estimated fair values reflect change in interest rates.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

As the remaining ife of all frade and other receivables and payables is less than one year, the notional amount is

deemed to reflect the fair value.

INTEREST RATES USED FOR DETERMINING FAIR VALUE

The entity uses government yield curve as of 30 June 2006 plus an adequate constant credit spread to discount

financial instruments. The interest rates used are as foliows:

2008 2005
Loans and borrowings 7.3% 6.8%
Secured bank loans 8.0% 8.0%

30 Earnings Per Share

2008 2005
Calculated in accordance with AASB 133:
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 23.8c 19.5¢
Dituted earnings per share (cents per share) 22.1c 19.1¢c
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calctlating basic earnings per share 200,964,107 117,572,603
Effect of share options on issue 14,257,260 2,208,787
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating difuted earnings per share 215,221,387 119,781,370

The Company issued a further 21,428, 571 ordinary shares on 14 September 2006 through an institutional
placement. The effect of this share issue is not included in calcutation of Earnings Per Share above.

For the year ended 30 June 2005 Earnings Per Share has been calculated in accordance with AASB 133 above
and also on the capital structure following listing on the ASX as shown below as this is considered more

meaningfui and reflective of the ongeing position of the Company.

2008 2005
Calculated based on the ongoing position of the company:
Basic earnings per share {cents per share) N/A 114c
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating basic earnings per share N/A - 200,008,000
Dituted earnings per share {cents per share} N/A 10.7¢
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share N/A 213,808,000

Fage 84885



Financial
Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
Forthe Financial Year Ended 30 June 2008 {continued)

31 Economic Dependency

The consclidated entity’s vehicle and paris importing business depends on it receiving an ongoing supply of fully
assembled vehicles and spare parts from the owners of Western Star, Autocar and MAN. While interruption to
one manufacturers supply would impact the commercial vehicles operation it would generally require both
Western Star and MAN supply interruptions to materially hasm this business.

32 Key Management Personnel Disclosures

(A) DETAILS OF SPECIFIED DIRECTORS AND SPECIFIED EXECUTIVES
The following were key management personnel of the consolidated entity at any time during the reporting peried
and uriless ctherwise indicated were key management parsonnel for the entire period:
(i} Executive Directors
Terry Peabody {(Chairman}
Howard Witson {Chief Executive Officer)
Harold Grundell (Managing Director, Energy Division}
{ii} Non-executive directors
John Richards {(Deputy Chairman) {resigned subsequent to year end}
Bruce Brown
Graham Mulligan
Reod Ruston {resigned 28 January 2006)
(i} Key Executives
Stewart Smith — Advisor to Executive Chairman
Travor Coonan - Chief Financial Officer
Paul Glavac —~ Managing Director, Commercial Vehicles Division
Terry Woods - Managing Director, Mergers and Acquisitions
Nick Badyk - Managing Director, Industrial Services Division
Geoff Sparks — Managing Director, Corporate Affairs and Government Services
Greg Campbell - Managing Director, New Zealand {appointed 17 Cctober 2005)
Tony Roderick - Managing Director, Liguid Waste and Recycling Division {appointed 1 December 2005)

(B} KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

The key management personnel compensation included in employee expenses are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
20086 2006 2008 2005
$000 £000 $000 £000
Short-term employee benefits 3,466 2,998 - -
Post-employment benefits 280 247 - -
Ecuity compensation benefits 994 162 904 182
4,740 3407 994 1652

The disclosures relating to remuneration of specified directors and executives is set out in the
remuneration report section of the directors report on pages 27 to 32.
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The movement during the reporting period in the number of options over ordinary shares in the Company held,
directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their related parties, is as follows.
No options are vested but rniot exercisable at the end of the year.

GRANTED OTHER VESTED AND
BALANCE AT DURING THE ~ EXERCISED CHANGES — BALANCE AT EXERCISABLE
THE START OF YEARAS  DURING THE  DURING THE  THEENDOF AT THE END
NAME THE YEAR  REMUNERATION YEAR YEAR THE YEAR  OF THE YBAR
Executive directors:
Terry Peabody * 6,950,000 - - - 6850,000 -
Howard Wilson 1,006,060 - - - 1,000,000 -
Harold Grundell 500,000 - - - 500,000 -
Non-Executive Directors:
John Richards 53,000 - - - 50,000 -
Bruce Brown 54,060 - - - 50,000 -
Graham Mutligan 50,000 - - - 50,000 -
Rod Rusten (resigned 25
Janurary 2006) 56,000 - - - 50,000 -
Key executives: -
Stewart Smith 750,000 - - - 750,060 -
Trevor Coonan 500,000 - - - 500,000 -
Paul Glavac 500,000 - - - 500,000 -
Terry Woods 500,000 - - - 500,000 -
Nick Badyk 500,000 - - - 500,000 -
Geoff Sparks 500,000 - - - 500,060 -
Grag Campbelt . 300,600 . - 300,060 -
Tony Roderick . 300,600 - - 300,000 -

* The options heid by Terry Peabody are undear terms of an option dead to enable the Peabody

family to refain effective contral.

Page 86887
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32 Key Management Personnel Disclosures {continued}

{D) SHARE HOLDINGS

The movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares in the Company held, directly or
indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, inciugding their related parties, is as follows.

RECEIVED
BURING THE OTHER
BALANCE AT THE  YEAR ON THE CHANGES  BALANCE AT THE
START OF THE  EXBRCISEOF  DURING THE END OF THE
NAME YEAR OPTIONS YEAR YEAR
Executive directors:
Terry Peabody (including related parties) 102,000,000 - - 102,000,000
Howard Wilson - - - -
Harold Grundell 128,000 - - 125,000
Non-executive directors:
John Richards 8,395,834 - 23,000 8,418,834
Bruce Brown 85,000 - - 85,000
Graham Mutligan 36,080 - - 30,0600
Rod Rusten (resigned 25
January 2008) 31,280 - - 31,250
Key executives:
Stewart Smith - - - -
Trevor Coonan 700,000 - 75,000 775,000
Paul Glavac 25,000 - - 25000
Terry Woods 84,080 - 406 84,406
Nick Badyk 44,000 - 213 44,213
Geoff Sparks 83,000 - 401 83,401

Greg Campbel! - -
Tony Roderick - -

(£} CHANGES IN KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL IN THE PERIOD AFTER THE REPORTING DATE AND
PRIOR TO THE DATE WHEN THE FINANCIAL REPORT IS AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE

Subsequent to balance date Mr John Richards resigned as a non-executive director of the Company (effective
date 23 August 2006). Mr Bruce Allan was appointed as a non-executive director to replace Mr Richards

{effective date 23 August 2006).
(F) LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

There were no loans to directors and executives during the year.



Transpacific
Annual Report 2006

33 Subsequent Events
On 3 July the consolidated entity amalgamated with Waste Management NZ Lid (WMNZ).

The consclidated entity has not allocated any of the purchase price to separately identifiable intangible assets that
WHNZ have on the basis that it hias not had the opportunity to make a full and detailed assessment of the
acquisition accounting implications. This is permissible under AASE 3 Business Combinations where the acquirer
has a period of 12 months to complete the assessment. However, at this time, as guidance, the estimated fair
vaiue of the identifiable assets and liabilities of WMNZ as at the date of acquisition are:

CONSOLIDATED

RECOGNISED ON
ACQUISITHON CARRYING VALUE

£000 $000
Cash, cash aquivalents and debt {142, 404) {142, 494)
Receivables 35,806 35,906
Inventories 1,545 1,545
Other current assets 2916 2918
Investments in associates 14,488 14,4588
Property, plant and eguipment 177,354 173,354
Intangibles 95,198 95,198
Deferred tax assets 708 708
18586214 181,621
Trade creditors and other {25,028) {25 028)
Employee entitlements {12,295) {12,205)
Deferred income {16,031} {10,631)
Deferred tax liabilities {9,322y {9,322)
Provisions {11,958 {11,858)
{68,634 (68,634)
Fair value of net assets 116,087 112,887
Goodwill and other intangibles
arising on acquisition 538 369
Total consideration paid 705,356
The cash outfiow on acguisition is
as follows:
Net debt acquired with subsidiary {142, 494)
Cash paid for equity {708,3886)
(847,850)

The consclidated entity has also acquired a number of businesses, which individually and in aggregate are not
material.

Subsequent to balance date, the consolidated entity amended its debt facilities and raised/is raising additional
equity as follows:

On 31 August 2008, the Company and its 100% owned subsidiaries signed a new Syndicated Muit-Option
Facility with its bankers. The agreement increases the facilities from $1 billien to $1.2 billion.

Fage 88889
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33 Subsequent Events {continued)
The equity raisings werefare:
«  On 23 Auggust 2008 $250 million was raised through the issue of Transpacific Step-up Preference
Securities;
»  On 14 September 2006 the Company raised $150 million through the placement of 21,428,571 ordinary
shares.
« Atthe date of this report the Company is in the process of raising up to $20 million through a share
purchase plan. This is expected to be completed by mid-Gctober 2006,

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2006 that has significantly affected, or may significantty
affect the operations of the consclidated entity, the results of these operations in future financial years, or the
state of affairs of the consolidated entity in subsequent financiat years.

34 Impact of adoption of AIFRS

The impacts of adopting AIFRS on the total equity and profit after tax as reported under previcus Australian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("AGAAP" are illustrated below:

(A} RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL EQUITY AS PRESENTED UNDER PREVIOUS AGAAF TO THAT UNDER AIERS

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY
30 JINE 2005 1 JULY 2004 30 JUNE 2003 1 JULY 2004
$000 §000 $000 $000
Tota! equity under previous AGAAP 122,844 94,908 90,529 79,596
Adjustments to retained earnings net of fax
Goedwill no longer amortised (a} 2,827
Property, plant and equipment (b) {2,454} {2,454)
Share based payments (c} {226} (228)
Reclassify government grant (d) {700
Business combinations (g} 4,745
Tax adjustments (f) {77} {(117) {1.424)
Adjustments to cther reserves net of fax
Asset revaluation {f} (2,797}
Share based payments (c} 226 226
Cash flow hedges (g} (2,163} (767)
Total equity under AIFRS 122,285 92,337 88,338 79,586

(B} RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAX UNDER PREVIOUS AGAAP TO THAT UNDER AIFRS

CONSOLIDATED THE COMPANY

30 JUNE 2005 30 JUNE 2005

$000 $000

Prior year profit before tax as previously reported 36,926 13913

Goedwill no longer amortised (a} 2,827 -

Share based payment expense (a) {226} {226)

Reclassify government grant (d) {700} -
Business combinations (g} 4,745

Prior year profit before tax under AIFRS 43,572 13,687




Transpacific Page G081
Annual Report 2006

34 impact of adoption of AIFRS {continued}

(C} NOTES TO RECONCILIATIONS
{a) Goodwill

The consclidated entity has applied AASB 3 to all business combinations that have cccurred since 1 July 2004 (the
date of transition to AIFRS) but elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to that date.
Goodwill arising from business combinations since 1 July 2004 is nio longer amortised under AIFRSs, but is tested
annual for impairment.

The effect of the change is an increase in the carrying amount of goodwill by $2,827,000 and an increase in profit
before tax of $2,827,000 for the financial year ended 30 June 2005. There is no tax effect as deferred taxes are
not recognised for temporary differences arising from goodwil for which amortisation is not deductible for tax
PUPOSEes.

(b} Property, plant and eguipment

The consolidated entity elected to measure property, plant and equipment (other than land and buildings) on
transition to AIFRS at fair value and has used that fair value as the item’'s deemed cost at that date. The effect of
the revaluation to fair value for property, plant and equipment previously held at cost is a decrease in the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment by $3,507 000 at 1 July 2004, These adjustmenis also resulted in an
increase in deferred tax assets of $287.000 and a decrease in deferred tax liabilities of $766,000. The net effect of
the adjustments on retained profits was a decrease of $2 454,000,

{c} Share based paymenis

For the financial year ended 30 June 2005, share-based payments of $226 408 {included in employee benefit
expenses) which were not recognised under AGAAP were recognised under A-IFRS, with a corresponding
increase in the employee equity benefits reserve. This adjustment had nio material tax or deferred tax
CONSequUences.

{d} Government grants

Under AGAAP, the consolidated entity recegnised revenue received from government granis in relation to the
construction of property, plant and equipment as revenue. Under AIFRS, the government grant is recognised as
deferred income, and used to offset future depreciation charges. Accordingly, revenue and net profit before tax
for the financiat year ended 30 June 2005 has been decreased by $700,000, and deferred income of $700,000
has been recognised as a non-current liability.

(e} Business combinations

Under AGAAP, the consolidated entity recognised any excess of assets and liabilities acguired on the purchase of
a business as a discount on acqguisition, which was applied as a reduction across the assets acquired in the
business combination. Under AIFRS if the acquisition price is less than the fair value of the niet assets acquired a
profit on acguisition arises and is recorded in the income statement. Accordingly, the profits arising on business
combinations for the financial year ended 30 June 2005 of $4,745,000 have been recognised as revenue in the
income statement, with a corresponding increase in intangible assets.

(i Deferred taxes

Under superseded policies, the consolidated entity adopted tax-effect accounting principles whereby income tax
expense was calculated on pre-tax accounting profits after adiustment for permanent differences. The tax-effect
of timing differences, which occur when items were included or allowed for income tax purposes in a period
different to that for accounting were recognised at current taxation rates as deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, as applicable.

Under A-IFRS, deferred tax is determined using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arigsing from differences between the carrying amount of assets and Habilities in the financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases.
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34 Impact of Adoption of AIFRS {continued)

(C}) NOTES TO RECONCILIATIONS (CONTINUED)
{g) Hedges
Cash flow hedges

Under AGAAP, unrealised gains or losses on unexpired foreign exchange coniracts were included in other assets or
other liabilities. Under AIFRS unrealised gains or losses are included in other reserves as the confracts hedge future
purchases and qualify for hedge accounting.

Under AGAAP interest rate swaps were not recognised in the balance sheet, rather net receipts and payments were
recognised as an adjusiment to borrowing costs when paid. Under AIFRS unrealised gains or losses are included in
other reserves as the interest rate swaps qualify for hedge accounting.

(D} EXPLANATION OF MATERIAL ADJUSTMENTS TO THE CASH ELOW STATEMENT FOR 2005

There are no material differences between the cash flow statement presented under AIFRS and the cash flow
statement presented under previous AGAAP.



Transpacific Page 92843
Annual Report 2006

Directors’ Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of Transpaciic industries Group Lid ("the Company™):

{a) the financial statements and notes, including the remuneration disclosures that are contained on pages 25 to

30 of the Remuneration report in the Directors’ Report), set out on pages 34 to 92 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the consolidated entity as at 30
June 2006 and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash
flows, for the financial year ended on that date; and

(it

complying with Austratian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001, and

(b} the remuneration disclosures that are contained on pages 25 to 30 of the Remuneration report in the
Directors’ Report comply with Australian Accounting Standard AASE 124 Related Parly Disclosures; and

{c) there are reasonable grounds o believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and when they
become due and payable; and

The directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the
financial year ended 30 June 2006 pursuant o section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001,

This dectaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

T E Peabody

B R Brown
Chairman

Deputy Chairman

Brisbane, 18 September 2006
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Independent Audit Report to Members of Transpacific industries Group Ltd

Scope
THE FINANCIAL REPORT, REMUNERATION DISCLOSURES AND DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

The finanicial report comprises the income statement, statement of recognised income and expense, balance
sheet, and cash flow statement, accompanying notes to the financial statements and the directors’ declaration
of Transpacific Industries Group Lid (the Company) and Transpacific Industries Group Lid and controlled
entities {the consolidated entity) for the vear ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity comprises both the
company and the entities it controlled during the year.

The Company has disclosed information about the remunieration of directors and executives ("remuneration
disclosures™, as required by Australian Accounting Standard AASE 124 Related Party Disclosures, under the
heading "Remuneration Report” in pages 25 to 30 of the Directors’ Report as permitted by the Corporations
Regulations 2001.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the
finrancial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report. The
directors are aiso responsible for the remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors’ Report.

AUDIT APPROACH

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion to the members of the Company. QOur
audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to provide reascnable
assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement and the remuneration disclosures
in the Directors’ Report comply with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 124, The nature of an audit is
influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent fimitations of
internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefere, an audit cannot
guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatery financiat
reporting requirements in Austratia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company's and
the consolidated entity’'s financial position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their
operations and cash flows and whether the remuneration disclosures comply with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 124,

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

*«  examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report and remuneration disclosures in the Directors’ Report, and

+  assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the Directors.

Whiile we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on
internal controts.

independence

in conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001,

in accordance with ASIC Class Order 05/83, we declare to the best of our knowledge and belief that the
auditor's independence declaration set out on page 33 of the financial report has not changed as at the date
of providing our audit opinion.
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Audit Opinion
In our opinion,

1. the financial report of Transpacific Industries Group Lid is in accordance with:

{a) the Caorporations Act 2001, including:

(i giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June
2008 and of their performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

{ify complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
{b} other mandatory professionat reporting reguirements in Australia.

2. the remuneration disclosures that are contained in pages 25 to 30 of the Directors’ Report comply with
Australian Accounting Standard AASE 124,

B oMl s M A5 ?WQ\

Bentleys MRI P M Power
Brisbane Partnership Partner
Brishane

18 September 2006

Fage 94885



Shareholder

Information

Top 20 shareholders as at 31 August 2008 No. of shares % Held
Tandom Pty Ltd 39,740,566 19.50
Brergzil Pty Ltd 36,527,045 17.83
Filrricre Lirmnitad 25,732,389 1283
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 16,525,045 811
4 Riehards & Sons Py Lid 8,768,526 4.32
ANZ Nominess Limited (Income Reinvest Plan A/C) 8,584,930 4.21
Neational Nomineas Limited 5,850,880 27T
ANZ Nominess Limitad ([Cash Income A/C) 5,325,184 261
Cogent Nominsas Pty Limited 4,386,420 215
Westpao Custodian Nominess Limited 4,386,420 210
Suncorp Custodian Sarvices Pty Limited 2,087,845 1.02
Fordson Fiats Pty Lid 1,712,983 (.84
Citicorp Nomineas Bty Limited (CFS Future Leaders Fund A/C) 1,509,613 0.74
Warbort Nominsas Pty Ltd (Unpaid Entrepot A/C) 1,388 524 068
AME? Life Lirmited 1,255,471 082
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd 1,150,853 0.58
UBS Waaith Management Australia Nominess Py Lid 1,050,744 0.52
Cogent Nomineas Py Limited (SMF° Accourts) 1,048,082 0.51
Citicorp Nomineas Pty Limited (CFSIL CWLTH AUST SHS 5 A/Cl 976,688 048
Citicorp Nomineas Pty Limited 846,374 0.48
Report Total 168,677,629 82.78
Remainder 35,079,072 17.22
Grand Total 203,756,7T1 100.00

Sulbsstantial shareholders
Tha number of shares held by substantial sharshalders as disclosed in the
subsiantial shareholding rotices given Lo the Company as al 31 August 2006 were:

Tardom Py Ltd 39,740,566 19.50
Branzil Pty Ltd 36,527,045 17.83
Filmaore Limited 25,732,365 1283
NG Australia Heldings Limitad and related companias 25,888,452 12.7%
Total 127,888,452 6277

An entity has a substantial shareholding if the total votes attaching fo shares in which the entity and thair associates have a ralevant
#terest is 5% or rmare. The list of the twenty largest shareholders is based on the number of shares held i tha narme of sach
shareholder not including theair associatas), aven if the sharsholder does not have a relevant interast in the shares, for axarmple,
Bacause the sharsholder holds the share as a nominese. The st of tha twanty largest shareholders of tha Compary and the fist of
subsstantial sharsholders of the Company differ for this reason.

Siatement of Quoted Securities

The Company's total number of shares on issue as at 31 August 2006 is 203,756,701 ardinary fully paid sharas, At 31 August 2006
the total numbar of shareholders owning these shares was 5,526 on the registar of mambers maintained by Computershare Investor
Senvices Py Lid.

82.78% of otal issued capital is held by or on bahalf of the twenty largast shareholders.

Voting rights

Under the Company’s constitstion, svery member entitlad 1o vota who is present at a general meating of the Company in parson

ar by proxy or by attarney or in the case of a corporation, by represertative, shall, upon a show of hands, have ane vote only.

Whera a member is entitled to cast two or miore votes it miay appoint not more than twe proxies or attomeys.

Polf — Ory a poll, avery meamber entitled to vote shall, whethar present in person or by proxy or attorney or, in the case of

a corporation, by reprasantative, have ons vota far every share hald by tha member,

At 31 August 2008, thare wers options over 15,125,000 unissued ordinary shares. 8,175,000 options ars held by Non-executive
directors and executivas of the Carporate group {fexcluding the Exacutive Chairman) granted under the Transpacific Executive Share
Gption Flan. 6,550,000 options ars held by Brenzil Pty Lid undar an option dead. There are no voting rights attached to unissuad
arciinary shares. Voting rights will be attached 1o the unissued ordinary shares whan the options have bean axercised.

Digtribution Schedule of Shareholders

No. of shares: 1 - 1000 1,001 - 5,000 5,001 - 10,000 0,001 100,000 100,001 and over
No. of shareholders: 1,440 2,869 740 443 65

The rurnber of shareholders sach holding less than a marketable parcel of the Cornpary’s ordinary shares at 31 August 2006 was 54,

Shares subject to voluntary escrow
The Company has enterad into arestriction deed with Branzil Pty Ud, Tandom Pty Lid and Fiimore Limited which colisctivaly own
50% of the issued share capital of the Company. Under tha rastriction deed, these shareholders agree not to dispose of or agres
ar offer to dispose of the shares bheld by thern as set out balow for a period of 18 morths from the date of official quotation on ASX
{3 May 2005} of the sharas in the Company. The sscrow period ends 3 November 2008,

No. of restricted shares

Tandom Pty Ltd 39,740,508
Branzil Pty Ltd 36,527,045
Filmcre Limited 25,732,380

Stock Exchange listing
Tha sharas of Transpacific Industrias Group Lid are listad on the Australian Stock Exchange
under the trads symibol TR, with Brisbane being the home exchange.






I —INDUETRIESGWWI[!‘D



